
LANDLORD SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD 
 
 

Thursday, 31 March 2022 - 10.00 am  
 

 Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Burys, Godalming 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Circulation: 
Terry Daubney, Waverley Tenants' Panel 
(Joint Chairman in the Chair) 
Cllr Paul Rivers (Joint Chairman) 
Cllr Simon Dear 
Cllr Jacquie Keen 
Gillian Martin, Waverley Tenants Panel 
Danielle Sleightholme, Waverley Tenants 
Panel 
Cllr Michaela Wicks 
 

 
  
  
 

 
1   Apologies for absence   

 
To receive apologies for absence. 
 

2   Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
To agree the minutes of the previous meeting.  
 

3   Declarations of interest   
 
To receive any declarations of interests under the Waverley Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 
 

4   Introduction to TLF (The Leadership Foundation) responsive repairs 
feedback contractor   
 
Presentation by Chris Elliott, Client Manager, TLF, to introduce themselves and 
the project. 
 

5   Housing Asset Management Strategy  (Pages 9 - 52) 
 
Purpose and Summary 
 
To share the final draft version of the Housing Asset Management Strategy 
(HAMS) document with the Board for comment and any recommendations they 
wish to make to the Strategic Asset Manager and Portfolio Holder for Housing. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the Board: 



 

i  review and make any comments on the draft Housing Asset Management 
Strategy 

ii  request an Executive Summary of the Strategy be developed for 
publication 

iii  recommend that the Executive approves the Housing Asset Management 
Strategy for adoption by the Council 

iv  undertake to monitor the implementation and performance of the strategy 
 
Reason for the recommendation 
 
To provide Board members the opportunity to comment on the strategy, support 
the adoption of the strategy and to monitor the implementation and outcomes of 
the strategy. 
 
 
Hugh Wagstaff to present 
 
 

6   Housing Performance Report Quarter 3 with Key Performance Indicator 
Review  (Pages 53 - 70) 
 
Purpose and summary 
 
The Corporate Performance Report, set out in Annexe 1, provides an analysis of 
the Council’s performance for the third quarter of 2021-22. 
 
The Housing Service performance information has been extracted for the 
Landlord Services Advisory Board.  The full performance report can be found on 
the council website. 
 
The organisation conducts an annual review of the corporate performance 
indicators to evaluate their continued appropriateness in the light of any new 
legislation or changes to organisational needs and priorities.  The proposed 
Landlord Services Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are set out at Annexe 
Two. 
 
The report is being presented to each of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
and the Landlord Services Advisory Board for comment and any 
recommendations they may wish to make to senior management or the 
Executive. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the Board considers the performance of the housing 
service areas, and 
i identifies any areas for comment or further exploration,  
ii makes any recommendations to senior management or the Portfolio Holders 
for Housing as appropriate 
iii advises the Portfolio Holders for Housing to request HRA capital budgets are 
routinely reported in the Quarterly Corporate Performance Report, and 
iv advises the Portfolio Holders for Housing to approve the 2022/23 KPIs 
 



 

Reason for the recommendation 
 
The quarterly review of the Council’s performance and annual review of KPIs, is 
subject to internal as well as external scrutiny.  This approach allows for a 
transparent assessment on how each service performs against its set goals and 
targets.  It also allows Board members to raise any areas of concern to senior 
management and the Executive, which in turn drives service improvement. 
 
 
Annalisa Howson to present 
 

7   Tenancy Review Project Update   
 
Annalisa Howson to present a PowerPoint presentation. 
 

8   Senior Living Consultation Progress Report   
 
David Brown / Hugh Wagstaff to give a verbal update. 
 

9   Work programme  (Pages 71 - 84) 
 

10   Date of next meeting   
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

LANDLORD SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD 
 

24 February 2022 
 

N O T E S 
Present: 
Cllr Nick Palmer 
Cllr Paul Rivers (Chairman) 
Terry Daubney, Waverley Tenants' Panel 
(Vice Chairman) 
Cllr Simon Dear 
Cllr Jacquie Keen 
Gillian Martin, Waverley Tenants Panel 
Danielle Sleightholme, Waverley Tenants 
Panel 
 

  
  
 

23  Apologies for absence    
 

Apologies were received from Officer Annie Righton, Strategic Director. 
 

24  Minutes of the previous meeting    
 

The minutes of the previous meeting from 28 January were agreed to be an 
accurate record. 
 

25  Declarations of interest    
 

There were no declarations of interest connected with the items on the agenda. 
 

26  Senior Living Consultation    
 

The Service Improvement Manager gave a presentation regarding the eight senior 
living schemes and 2021 consultation. 
 
She stated that the service used to receive Housing Support Fund from Surrey 
County Council which enabled them to have full time Senior Living Managers on 
site.  Now the service was focussed on health and safety of building, residents and 
about empowering people for independent living.  Since the service was rebranded 
in April 2018, the Senior Living Manager committed to annual consultation events.  
This was not possible in 2020, nor 2021 so a paper survey was distributed. 
 
The Service Improvement Manager shared the results, feedback themes and draft 
action plan.  There was an overall response rate of approximately 30%, but very 
variable across the different schemes.  The Service Improvement Manager said 
people were genuinely happy with their homes and the service, but a range of 
improvements and issues had been identified to inform the draft action plan.  She 
invited comments. 
 
The Board discussed the variable response rate and if it was a true reflection of 
tenants’ views.   
 
Some of the members of the Board also felt the stigma needed to be removed and 
the service needed to be modernised.  Some others felt that removing senior living 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



2 
 
 

support was not a good situation.  Some of the Tenants’ Panel felt that it was not 
ideal that there were no managers managing the senior living schemes on site 
anymore, they were managed by an officer, and this had caused confusion for 
some residents. 
 
Board members believed there is an inconsistency in service across the schemes 
and Senior Living Officers are not delivering as advertised on the website.  The 
Service Improvement Manager noted that the pandemic had prevented the the 
service evolving as expected following the 2018 relaunch. 
 
Tenants’ Panel representative Terry Daubney felt there needed to be more of a 
sense of urgency to ensure the survey responses were better collected from some 
schemes and that the areas of dissatisfaction were addressed.  The Service 
Improvement Manager responded that the survey had identified issues and the 
housing operations team were going to pick them up.  As a result of the consultation 
response, a draft action plan was drawn up.  It was felt that communication was 
key.  There would also be investigation into why the response rate from some 
schemes was so poor.  It was felt that it was distributed in different ways in different 
places. It was stated that in future years the survey was likely to be carried out by a 
mixture of face-to-face surveys with residents and paper surveys. 
 
Some members of the Board commented that the questionnaire had come at a 
difficult time for older people with the Covid pandemic occurring.  Some of the 
Board did not think the survey gave a good representation of people living in senior 
living accommodation.  Tenants’ Panel representative Gillian Martin commented 
that the Tenants’ Panel had only been made aware of the survey a few days before 
it went out.  She reported that the Tenants’ Panel had got a very negative response 
from tenants about it in one scheme.  There was a lot of fear that their tenancy 
would be at risk if they raised issues. 
 
The Head of Housing Operations confirmed that this was the start of the 
conversation and to use this information as an opportunity to review service 
provision and relaunch the service to meet the needs of current and future tenants. 
 

27  Flexible Tenancy Review    
 

The Service Improvement Manager presented the officer proposal to cease using 
flexible tenancies.  She stated that flexible tenancies had been introduced in 
September 2014.  A five-year fixed term was offered to maximise the use of social 
housing and for social housing to be a springboard into other forms of 
accommodation.  There had been a change in view and perception of social 
housing and noted that some tenants were feeling insecure in their homes and were 
not building relationships in the community during that time. 
 
It was pointed out that to change the terms and conditions of the flexible tenancies 
there would need to be a consultation process and change to the Council’s Tenancy 
Policy and Tenancy Strategy. 
 
The Head of Housing Delivery and Communities commented that many other social 
landlords were removing fixed term tenancies and the national view had changed 
over time. 
 
Resolved 

Page 6



3 
 

 
That the Board advised the Portfolio Holder to end the use of flexible tenancies and 
supported the proposal to progress the officer’s implementation plan. 
 

28  Work programme    
 

It was stated that the details from the scheduled report on the HRA Finance would 
be included in the Quarterly Performance Report.  It was agreed that feedback and 
progress on the Senior Living Service Consultation action plan would be added as a 
standing item on the agenda. 
 

29  Date of next meeting    
 

The next meeting was scheduled for 10am on 31 March 2022. 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

WAVERLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LANDLORD SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD 
 

31 MARCH 2022 

 
Title:  

HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

 
Portfolio Holder: Cllr Paul Rivers, Co-Portfolio Holder for Housing (Operations) 
 
Head of Service: Hugh Wagstaff, Head of Housing Operations  
 
Key decision: No  
 
Access:  Public 

 
 
1. Purpose and summary 
 
To share the final draft version of the Housing Asset Management Strategy (HAMS) 
document with the Board for comment and any recommendations they wish to make to 
the Strategic Asset Manager and Portfolio Holder for Housing. 
 

 
2. Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the Board: 

i review and make any comments on the draft Housing Asset Management 
Strategy,  

ii request an Executive Summary of the Strategy be developed for publication, 
iii recommend that the Executive approves the Housing Asset Management 

Strategy for adoption by the Council, and  
iv undertake to monitor the implementation and performance of the strategy. 

  
 
3. Reason for the recommendation 
 

To provide Board members the opportunity to comment on the strategy, support 
the adoption of the strategy and to monitor the implementation and outcomes of 
the strategy.  

  
 
4. Background 
 

4.1 Consultants Faiththorn, Farrell and Timms (FFT) were appointed in autumn 
2021 to support Waverley in the development of a new eight-year Housing Asset 
Management Strategy to cover the period from 2022–2030 (Annexe One) in line 
with the Council’s strategic objective to become carbon neutral by 2030. The 
strategy replaces the previous 2015-20 strategy and the Interim Action Plan for 
2021 and is supported by a detailed HAMS Action Plan 2022-2030. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

4.2 An integral part of this work involved carrying out a detailed Energy Study of 
all available data to support the direction of this strategy and to provide financial 
projections for future investment in both energy efficiency and decarbonisation 
improvements. 
 
4.3 As part of the overall commission and key to future investment planning, an 
asset appraisal model has been created.  This allows for the whole stock to be 
assessed and ranked based on a range of financial and non-financial performance 
metrics and an appraisal framework to be developed as part of actively managing 
priorities. 
 
4.4 A comprehensive suite of more detailed technical appendices underpins the 
overall strategy document. 
 
4.5 On 22 February 2022, the Council resolved to undertake a strategic review of 
the 30 year Housing Revenue Account Business Plan during 2022/23.  The 
Housing Asset Management Strategy will inform the strategic review.  The strategy 
provides an objective and technical view of the stock and priority objectives to 
manage, maintain and improve homes.    
 
 
Development of the HAMS 
 
4.6 In developing this strategy extensive data analysis, and corporate and sector 
research has been undertaken. This has been further supported by a full review of 
existing Waverley strategies, service plans, internal policies and procedures.   
 
4.7 Internal consultation with officers was also carried out to identify lessons 
learnt from the previous strategy and how these could be addressed in the new 
strategy. 
 
4.8 This strategy provides the baseline and background of the current service 
and strategic and corporate objectives of Waverley.  It provides evidence to support 
these objectives and commitments and outlines the thinking behind the overall 
approach taken. 
 
 
Key Themes 

 
4.9 The strategy has been developed to support the efficient and effective 
delivery of asset management as a core requirement of the Council’s landlord 
obligations. It provides a framework under which the investment detailed in the 
Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2021 – 2050 and strategic priorities 
within the Corporate Plan 2020 – 2025 can be achieved.  Over the period of this 
strategy a key objective will be to address the Climate Emergency Crisis declared in 
September 2019. 

 
4.10 The strategy outlines the approach and commitments the Council is making 
under the following key themes: 

▪ Understanding our service, assets, customer and stakeholder 

requirements 

▪ Providing modern homes across the borough 

Page 10



 

▪ Proactively decarbonising our homes 

▪ Ensuring homes are safe and secure for tenants and leaseholders 

4.11 The strategy has been designed to go beyond our ‘business as usual’ 
activities being delivered through both responsive repairs and Core Capital 
Programme works.  
 
4.12 Each theme within the strategy has a Strategic Objective, which is supported 
through individual commitments. These are captured in our strategy Action Plan 
and will be used to drive Property Services service planning. 
 
 
Consultation 

 
4.13 Consultation was carried out with internal staff/teams in the development of 
the strategy and focused both on the previous strategic period as well as identifying 
plans for the future.  
  
4.14 Key teams and stakeholders were consulted to gather as much insight into 
the current areas of best practice and excellence as well as suggestions for 
improvements and barriers to delivery. This included Planned Works, Compliance 
and Repair teams and also Housing Development, Sustainability, Procurement and 
Finance teams. 

   
4.15 The consultation was also used to: 

▪ Review the relevant teams, roles and responsibilities across the Council 

▪ Identify the key future priorities for each team to be able ensure that the 

HAMS supports these 

▪ Discuss the positive impacts and challenges of the current HAMS and 

aspirations of the new HAMS 

▪ Understand the internal culture, communication and management of HAMS 

and property services team overall within Waverley. 

 
4.16 The strategy has also been developed in consultation with tenants and 
leaseholders through discussions with the Tenants Panel and engaging with 
tenants at a series of consultation events in Autumn 2021.  Additionally, a review of 
current service standards, performance indicators, complaints and feedback to 
identify areas of improvement and current best practice was undertaken, including 
input from the recent STAR survey (June 2021). 
 
4.17 Key members have also been consulted at various stages in the 
development of the strategy including the Leader of the Council, Portfolio Holders 
for Housing and for Sustainability. 
 
 

 HRA Business Plan and Stock Condition Data (Keystone) 
 
4.18 In developing the strategy, a detailed internal assessment of all relevant data 
was carried out; this has provided a baseline position (Q3 2021/2022) to be able to 
identify the areas of strategic investment.  
 

Page 11



 

4.19 For the purposes of this strategy the July 2021 HRA Business Plan has been 
used with adjusted figures for the four years up to 25/26 have been included from 
current Budget Review process (Feb 2022). The expenditure has been profiled 
against stock condition data held within the Council’s asset management system 
(Keystone) to identify known investment priorities and areas where there may be 
under or over investment allocated over the strategy period.   
 
 

5. Relationship to the Corporate Strategy and Service Plan 
 

The AMS focuses on the effective and efficient management of resources and 
assets to meet housing need and supports a key objective of the Corporate Plan 
(2020 – 2025) in providing ‘good quality housing for all income levels and age 
groups’. 

  
 
6. Implications of decision 
 
6.1 Resource (Finance, procurement, staffing, IT)  

This report has no direct financial implications however the Asset Management 
Strategy will inform budget setting going forward.  
 
Managing and maintaining the Council’s housing stock generates a significant 
revenue stream each year. In order to ensure that the stock is maintained to a 
good standard, significant investment is required each year.  The Housing Asset 
Management Strategy complements and informs the 30-year HRA Business Plan 
and aims to ensure that financial resources are appropriately invested and 
achieves long term sustainability. 

 
6.2 Risk management 

Actions and mitigations relating to the strategy are included on Corporate Risk 
Register. 

  
6.3 Legal 
 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 
6.4 Equality, diversity and inclusion 

A full Equality Impact Assessment of this strategy document has been carried out 
and no areas of concern were highlighted. 
 

6.5 Climate emergency declaration 
A key priority within this strategy is to decarbonise our homes and to devise 
longer term strategies and approaches to becoming Carbon Neutral by 2030. It 
will also support the objectives in the Climate Change Strategy and Carbon 
Neutral Action Plan. 

 
 
7. Consultation and engagement 
 

Strategy developed with housing team, tenant feedback, reflections from the 
Tenants Panel, former Housing O&S committee and Executive members. 

 

Page 12



 

 
8. Other options considered 
 

A Housing Asset Management Strategy is a key document in ensuring that the 
housing stock meets the needs and aspirations of the Borough and its residents. 

 
 
9. Governance journey 
 

This report will be presented to Landlord Services Advisory Board on 31 March, 
Executive on 5 April and Council on 26 April. 

 
 
Annexe: 
 
Annexe 1 – Housing Asset Management Strategy 2022-2030 

 
Background Papers 
 
There are no background papers, as defined by Section 100D(5) of the Local Government 
Act 1972).  

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 
Name:  Peter David 
Position: Strategic Asset Manager 
Telephone: 01483 523547 
Email:  peter.david@waverley.gov.uk 
 
Agreed and signed off by: 
Legal Services: 17 March 2022 
Head of Finance: 17 March 2022 
Strategic Director: 8 March 2022 
Portfolio Holder: 18 March 2022 (PR PF and SW meeting 7 February)  

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Housing Asset 
Management 
Strategy 2022-2030

Page 15



2HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Contents

Foreword....................................................................................................... 3

Introduction................................................................................................5

Our Homes...................................................................................................6

Our Tenants................................................................................................. 7

Background..................................................................................................8

Influencing Factors...............................................................................10

Strategic Vision........................................................................................14

Strategic Dependencies......................................................................15

Strategic Objectives..............................................................................16

Asset Data, Planning and Service Delivery.............................. 17

Modern Homes....................................................................................... 20

Energy Efficiency and Decarbonisation................................... 26

Compliance and Building Safety...................................................33

Communication, Monitoring and Review................................36

Asset Management Strategy Governance................................36

Page 16



3HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Foreword
This strategy has been developed to guide the council in the 
efficient and effective management of its homes as a core 
requirement of meeting its Landlord Services function.

It provides a framework under which the 
investment detailed in the Housing Revenue 
Account Business Plan 2021 – 2050 and 
strategic priorities within the Corporate Plan 
2020 – 2025 can be achieved.

The Housing Asset Management Strategy 
is not only required to direct our investment 
priorities but also demonstrate how we will 
deliver excellent services to our tenants, 
leaseholders and wider stakeholders. It will 
identify how we will ensure that people living 
in our homes remain informed, involved, safe 
and secure.

1.	Understanding our service, homes, 
tenants and stakeholder requirements

2.	Providing modern homes across 
the borough

3.	Proactively decarbonising 
the homes 

4.	Ensuring homes are safe and secure 
for tenants and leaseholders

The strategy outlines the approach and 
commitments the council is making under the 
following key themes:

Page 17



4HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Cllr Paul Rivers 
Co-Portfolio Holder for Housing (Operations)

Over the period of this strategy our principal aim 
is to address the Climate Emergency, declared 
in September 2019, which is supported 
through our Climate Change Strategy and 
Action Plan, with the Built Environment (homes) 
being one of the key strands of our approach. 
Whilst this is addressed as a key theme within 
our Housing Asset Management Strategy, 
meeting our carbon neutral target across all 
council activities by 2030 will be addressed 
through all areas of the strategy. In addition to 
working towards decarbonising our housing 
stock we will also support our tenants and 
leaseholders in reducing fuel poverty to mitigate 
the projected increase in energy costs over 
this period. We will ensure that any measures 
we take to reduce the carbon output of our 
homes does not have a negative impact on our 
tenant’s energy costs.

The strategy has been designed to provide 
additional guidance beyond our ‘business 
as usual’ activities, delivered through both 
Responsive Repairs and our Core Capital 
Programme. Each theme within the strategy 
has a strategic objective, which is supported 
through individual commitments. These are 
captured in our Strategy Action Plan and will 
be used to inform future Property Services 
Service Planning.

The strategy has been developed in 
consultation with our tenants and leaseholders 
through discussions with our Tenants Panel 
and engaging with tenants at consultation 
events in Autumn 2021. Additionally, we 
have reviewed our current service standards, 
performance indicators, complaints and 
feedback to identify areas of improvement and 
current best practice. Our Survey of Tenants 
and Residents (STAR, June 21) has also 
helped inform our future thinking.

This strategy was agreed by the council, in 
April 2022, following advice from our Landlord 
Services Advisory Board in March 2022. The 
Board will support the ongoing governance and 
delivery of the strategy.

Page 18



5HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Introduction
The previous Housing Asset Management Strategy (2015 – 
2020) focused on the effective and efficient management of 
resources and assets to meet housing need. This principle 
remains and will be required to support a key objective of 
the Corporate Plan (2020 – 2025); in providing ‘good quality 
housing for all income levels and age groups’.

Since 2015, the landscape in which the council 
operates has changed significantly and remains, 
to an extent, in a state of flux. Following the 
2017 Grenfell Tower tragedy, changes to the 
investment planning and delivery of building 
safety works continues to test the capacity of the 
social housing sector. Now with the additional 
and increasing focus on energy efficiency, 
decarbonisation, affordability and the outcomes 
of the White Paper highlighting the need to hear 
the resident voice, local authorities are under 
enormous and perhaps unprecedented pressure 
to understand and implement these emerging 
and occasionally conflicting agendas.

This strategy sets out our asset management 
philosophy and key objectives to guide and 
monitor progress through the next eight years. 
Our stated objectives illustrate our intentions 
and expectations. Detail around activities and 
investment required to deliver these objectives 
is provided in the supporting action plan and will 
be monitored through individual project plans.

Asset management is becoming increasingly 
complex and changeable, so this strategy 
is agile to accommodate further changes in 
the external environment as current thinking, 
regulation and technological solutions evolve. 
It also needs to adapt to reflect changes 
in wider investment priorities and strategic 
objectives of the council.

We remain committed to collect, maintain 
and interpret quality data and adopt robust 
planning methods to develop a more proactive 
and preventative asset management service, 
continually learning from our operations and 
using tenant and leaseholder engagement to 
drive continuous improvement.

By creating a Modern Homes Standard for our 
homes, we will set clear expectations for our 
residents, as well as providing consistency in 
investment and service across our portfolio. 
We will collaboratively work across our 
operational teams, using local knowledge and 
asset intelligence to inform how, when and 
where we deliver investment to maintain and 
improve our housing stock to optimal effect.

We also aim to further improve the contractual 
management of our contractors and their 
sub-contractors to provide greater visibility 
of performance, better monitor our collective 
progress, achievements and outcomes, 
as well as increasing the Social Value our 
partners offer the council and its residents.

By making intelligent use of data, experience 
and drawing upon best practice, this strategy 
will ensure the council continually improves 
its overall Asset Management to drive best 
value outcomes.

Page 19



6HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Our Homes
The council owns and manages 4800 homes, 10% of which 
are leasehold. These provide a well-balanced mix of property. 
The majority, 90%, of homes are let as general needs, with 
some of these allocated specifically to older people. 

There are no high-rise residential buildings (over 
18m) within the stock, which greatly reduces risk 
in terms of building and fire safety in comparison 
to other local authority landlords. Even so, the 
building safety agenda remains a key priority for 
the council, as for all social landlords over the 
coming years, regardless of building height.

The nature and requirements of leasehold 
properties does vary to that of General Needs 
properties and this has been considered when 
developing this strategy.

The council also owns 785 garages which 
are rented to both council tenants and 
local residents. The council has reviewed 

the condition and overall demand for its 
garages but this has been on individual 
garage sites, rather than taking a holistic 
view. Consideration has been given to the 
use of less popular garage sites for future 
development opportunities and assessments 
have been carried out to understand the 
current condition and future maintenance 
liability to improve the letting of garages.

Whilst a garage strategy has not specifically 
been developed as part of this Asset 
Management Strategy the standard, safety 
and use of garages is an important factor of 
good Asset Management and is considered 
as part of the provision of Quality Homes.

Houses

45%

Pre 1945 house

15%

Post 1974 house

10%

1945-64 house

20%Flats 

30%

Bungalows

20%

Senior Living

5%

Our homes by type

Page 20



7HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Our Tenants
Waverley’s tenants reflect the demographics 
of a borough with an aging population.

The housing services team  has limited data on protected characteristics but 
promotes equality, diversity and inclusion to deliver accessible services.  

35% 
of tenants 
are aged 65 
or above

25% 
have 
recorded a 
disability

60% 
of tenants 
are female 8% 

of tenants are 
from Black 
and Minority 
Ethnic groups

40% 

of tenants do 
not receive any 
benefits for 
housing costs

20% 

receive partial 
housing benefit

23% 

receive 
Universal 

Credit

17% 

full housing 
benefit

*Data from internal Housing Management System November 2021

3% 
of tenants 
who provided 
information 
identify as 
LGBTQ+

Page 21



8HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Background
Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015 - 2022

Lessons Learnt
•	 Better communication of the Asset Management Strategy across Property 

Services and the council

•	 Detailed action plan which can be disseminated into Team Plans and Individual 
objectives: with targets

•	 Improved data and planning activities to ensure delivery and meeting commitments to 
tenants and leaseholders

•	 Continual updating of strategy in line with external changes and financial priorities

•	 Using the strategy as a ‘working document’ which helps drive change, culture and 
communication across the organisation

•	 Providing regular updates to tenants and leaseholders and ensuring that consultation is 
carried out to understand the Resident Voice

•	 Improved engagement with Internal and External Stakeholders on delivery and outcomes

The previous strategy, written in 2015, largely 
focused on key workstream areas (responsive, 
planned, cyclical) and building skills and 
capacity within the service. The supporting 
action plan identified several areas for review 
and improvement, which have been taken 
forward in this strategy.

Over the past seven years, the context and 
landscape within social housing has changed 
greatly, introducing a host of complex and 
competing priorities as well as creating both 
financial and resourcing challenges. To meet 
this demand, a more holistic and data-driven 
approach is required to further develop the 
service to tenants and leaseholders.

Business as Usual (BAU) elements of the 
previous strategy remain valid and, as a core 

element of Asset Management delivery should 
be taken as included within this strategy.  
BAU activities should continue to be 
delivered, subject to continuous monitoring 
and periodic review. 

A full review of the previous strategy has been 
carried out to identify those projects which 
have been completed, those still in progress 
and areas where further review or attention is 
required. Relevant actions have been passed 
through to this strategy and are included 
within the supporting Action Plan.

In developing this Strategy, feedback has been 
sought across the council identifying areas for 
improvement in terms of strategy management, 
monitoring and reporting. This has informed the 
approach of the 2022 – 2030 strategy.

Page 22



9HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

STAR Tenant Satisfaction Survey 2021

During May and June 2021, we conducted 
our most recent STAR tenant satisfaction 
survey. The outcomes of this have informed 
our learning and approach in developing this 
strategy. Due to the timing of this survey, it 
has also helped us understand the impact of 
the COVID-19 pandemic and how this has 
affected both our tenants and the services 
that we provide.

The survey included a focus on the quality 
of homes, our repairs and maintenance 
services and how we communicate and keep 
our tenants informed. We feel these are all 
critical factors to ensuring that our tenants are 
satisfied with their home and housing service. 
To inform this strategy we have considered all 
aspects of the STAR survey results but have 
given more focus and review on some of the 
core indicators.

We can see from the results and associated 
feedback that we have improved the quality 
of our homes and that residents feel secure 
within their homes. These areas are also 
performing well against sector benchmarks. 
Around a third of our tenants felt energy 
efficiency improvements were a higher priority 
than other capital investments.

Our main challenges are associated with our 
repairs and maintenance services and the 
quality of the repair. We know, as a sector 
that this area of service has been impacted 
by COVID-19 and most landlords have seen 
a dip in this area over the past 24 months. 
Nevertheless, we accept that we need to 
improve our repairs services to tenants as this 
is the major cause of overall dissatisfaction. 
The introduction of our new Repairs and 
Maintenance contract in 2022 will be a driver 
for improvement in this area.

Benchmark 2017 Result 2021 Result
Quality of Home 82% 79% 81%
Safe and Secure Home 84% N/A 83%
Repairs and Maintenance Service 78% 76% 70%
Quality of Last Repair 86% 81% 73%
Easy to deal with 84% N/A 78%

VFM for Rent 85% 83% 84%
Overall Satisfaction 84% 83% 76%

Whilst our tenants acknowledge that we 
are ‘easy to deal with’ – there is some 
valuable feedback within the survey which 
tells us we need to better use technology to 
communicate quickly with tenants and at a 
time that suits them, improving ‘self-serve’ 
through an on-line portal. We also need to 
ensure that we always respond to our tenants’ 
enquiries and issues quickly, and this is also 
the case for our contractors.

When asking our tenants where and how we 
can improve there was clear feedback in that 
our core areas of focus should be our approach 
to customer service and satisfaction.

We will embed this within the strategy and work 
with tenants and leaseholders to identify where 
we can drive this improvement and better 
capture their feedback, suggestions and ideas.

Page 23



10HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Influencing Factors
Meeting Local Housing Need
Similar to other local authorities, we have a core 
strategic objective to meet the housing needs of 
our residents. This is reflected in our Corporate 
Strategy 2020 – 2025 with a clear ambition to 
provide ‘Good Quality Housing for all income 
levels and all age groups’. This is to ensure that 
we have a mix of housing solutions which meet 
the needs of the whole community and can 
support people in creating happy, healthy, and 
diverse communities within the borough.

The overall average rent for a property in 
Waverley is £1,257 per month which is close 
to the Surrey average. A household with an 
‘average’ Waverley workplace income renting 
a 2-bedroom property privately can expect to 
spend 44% of their income on renting in the 
private rented sector. This rises to 57% where 
all property sizes are considered. Therefore, 
the provision of truly affordable housing is 
critical; and largely addressed in our Affordable 
Homes Delivery Strategy 2022 – 2025.

We must also make sure that our existing 
homes are meeting the needs of local 
communities within the borough. This can 
be highlighted or addressed in a range of 
different ways, and it is important that we are 
constantly monitoring the performance and 
suitability of our homes for our tenants. Some 
examples of how we wish to make sure our 
homes meet the needs of our tenants are that:

•	 we have a mix of property sizes and types 
that are suitable for all tenants

•	 we have a proportionate geographical spread 
of affordable housing across the borough to 
create mixed tenure communities

•	 our homes are affordable for our tenants, in 
that they are not too expensive or challenging 
to heat, maintain or manage due to their 
construction or location

•	 we are maximising the property – ensuring 
that the property is the right size for them 
and/or their family

•	 we are maximising our land assets and where 
possible identifying those properties/land 
holdings which may support our Affordable 
Homes Delivery Strategy

Page 24



11HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

National Context
The Social Housing sector is currently facing 
several key external drivers that will influence 
this strategy over its delivery period. 

Over the past 12-18 months, there has been 
widespread consultation and debate, but in 
many areas, there remains a lack of absolute 
clarity around what future regulation, standards 
and funding regimes might look like.

It will be critical for the council to maintain a 
‘watching brief’ around these topics, and it 
can be expected that the strategy, actions and 
business plan will require review and changes 
from time to time.

The areas currently identified as key over the 
life of this strategy are:

•	 Fire Safety Act 2021 and Building Safety 
Bill 2021

•	 Social Housing White Paper 2020

•	 Clean Growth Strategy 2021

•	 Quality Lifetime Homes – the future of the 
Decent Homes Standard

•	 Future Homes Standard 2025

•	 Regulator of Social Housing Sector Risk 
Profile – 2021

This strategy and the supporting action plan 
must remain agile to account for pending 
clarifications around these key policy issues.

Within the supporting action plan, review points 
are included which will ensure that the strategy 
and action plan can be revised to reflect any 
financial and operational impacts arising from 
any material changes to the assumptions made 
at the time of drafting this Strategy.

Th
e
 C

h
a
rte

r fo
r S

o
cia

l H
o

u
sin

g
 R

e
sid

e
n

ts Social H
ousing W

hite Paper

The Charter for 
Social Housing 

Residents
Social Housing

White Paper

Page 25



12HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Housing Revenue Account  
Business Plan 
The HRA 30-year Business Plan is updated 
annually, providing a long-term income and 
expenditure profile based upon the latest data 
and business priorities.

A strategic review of the HRA Business 
Plan is planned to be undertaken in 
Autumn 2022 and this will inform future 
investment priorities over the life of the 
strategy and beyond. 

To ensure that the asset management strategy 
is deliverable, it is critical to understand this 
business plan and profile this against known 
and identified additional investment. For the 
purposes of this strategy, the latest HRA 
Business Plan (Budget Review Feb 22) has 
been used.

Analysis of the HRA Business Plan and the 
investment profile has been carried out. 
This shows that during the strategy period 
the budget projection for the Core Capital 
Programme is in line with investment need 
up until Year3 (2024/25) after which there 
is a shortfall between budget provision and 
investment requirement.

In addition to this variance there are further 
risks that could potentially impact the balance 
between the business plan and actual 
investment needed. The primary factors are 
considered as:

Capital Investment requirement vs Core Capital Programme (HRA) 2022-30

£10,000,000

(Existing) Core Capital Programme (HRA Budget)

(Indicative) Total Capital Investment Requirement

Yr1 Yr2 Yr3 Yr4 Yr5 Yr6 Yr7 Yr8 Yr9

£8,000,000

£6,000,000

£4,000,000

£2,000,000

£-

Page 26



13HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

1.	Investment identified – this may result in 
a variance to the investment need over the 
strategy period and 30 year long term plan. 
This is largely associated with replacement 
kitchens and bathrooms with the data 
needing to be validated through a borough 
wide stock condition survey. This backlog 
is due to investment programme being 
frozen in response to the rent reduction 
during 2016-20. For the purposes of this 
strategy it has been estimated that 40% 
of these identified components will require 
replacement, with the remainder being 
resolved through data validation. This historic 
investment has been modelled over the 
strategy period.

Component Backlog 
(£mil)

Bathrooms 4.90
Boundaries & Outbuildings 4.12
Kitchens 4.55
Roofline 3.59
Wall & Roof 3.30

2.	Energy Efficiency Improvement – as 
recognised within the strategy there is 
a range of unquantified spend or ‘new’ 
investment required which will sit outside 
of current investment projections; largely 
associated with Energy Efficiency and 
Decarbonisation changes within the sector.

3.	Labour Shortages and Cost Increases 
– the social housing sector is experiencing 
a disproportionate increase in the cost of 
materials associated with construction and 
property maintenance; this has been further 
heightened by wider economic factors 
and labour/skills shortages. It is expected 
that component costs will increase and 
potentially inflation might rise higher than 
assumptions included within the business 
plan. This is also expected when labour 
demand outstrips supply and costs increase 
particularly where there will be peaks of 
similar activity as the sector works towards 
the short-term 2030 Energy performance 
Certificate (EPC) target.

Investment needed to meet Decent Homes Standard and EPC C By 2030

Spend Area Assumptions 2022 – 2030 
(000’s)

Stock Maintenance (Responsive Repairs) As identified in HRA Budget £62,014
Future Capital Investment As identified in Keystone £41,386
Historic Component Replacement Taken as Pre-2021 Component 

Replacements (potential £26m) - 
40% requiring replacement 

£11,700 

Energy Efficiency Additional cost outside of 
business plan to meet EPC C 
by 2030 

£4,952

Labour and Cost Increases Assumed cost increases at 
4% on materials 

£603

Total Required £120,655
HRA Budget Provision Taken from 2022 Business Plan £121,270

Moving towards a more active asset management 
solution through the gathering and use of 
accurate data will allow the council to quantify 
the potential risk areas above and ensure these 
are factored into overall investment plans.

By developing closer and more collaborative 
relationships with key contractors, the 
understanding of labour and skills shortages 
will help the council identify such risks as early 
as possible.

Page 27



14HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Strategic Vision 
The overall Strategic Vision for Landlord Services within the 
council is directed by the Corporate Strategy 2020 – 2025.

It is appreciated that when the Corporate 
Strategy is revised in 2025, priorities and 
objectives may change, however it is not 
currently expected to fundamentally reshape 
the themes and approach of this strategy.

This strategy is also strongly linked to and 
influenced by the council’s Climate Change 
and Sustainability Strategy 2020 – 2030, with 
the objective to be carbon neutral across all 
the councils’ activities by 2030.

The Corporate Strategy also establishes the 
ambition for Waverley to be the best council 
landlord in the South-East by:

•	 Ensuring all our tenants have a safe,  
warm, high quality, energy efficient and 
affordable home

•	 Providing services and support that our 
tenants need

•	 Ensuring all new homes on council land 
achieve an energy rating of EPC A

•	 Ensuring that the service is financially robust 
to support services

Page 28



15HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Strategic Dependencies
A key focus of this strategy will be on capacity building 
to be able to manage increases in investment, skills and 
resources, both within the council and its contractors.

Financial Capacity:

•	 HRA Business Plan

•	 Investment Planning

•	 Divestment/Disposal Planning

•	 Specification and Service 
Delivery Efficiency

•	 Shared Services with partners

•	 External Funding Availability

•	 Service Charge and Major 
Works recovery

Resources, Skills and Training:

•	 Skills, Knowledge and Training

•	 Resource and Succession Planning

•	 Culture and Communications

•	 Sector Skills and Labour Shortages

•	 Social Value Initiatives

•	 Procurement

•	 Supply Chain Capacity

A key consideration and dependency on 
delivering this strategy will be the associated 
costs and investment needs. As identified, 
to meet the energy decarbonisation targets 
and to address any historic component 
replacement will require additional funding. 
This will require financial capacity building 
through more efficient delivery, better data 

understanding and improved organisation for 
planned investment to maximise economies of 
scale and avoiding unnecessary investment in 
those properties where it does not add value.

Some of the areas below highlight the 
dependencies and considerations that will 
need to be understood and addressed 
throughout the strategy period. 

Page 29



16HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Strategic Objectives

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

T
he

m
e Asset Data, 

Planning 
and Service 

Delivery

Understanding 

our properties 

and tenants to drive 

constant performance 

improvement and 

innovation

Providing homes 

which are warm, 

secure, high quality 

and affordable

Improving the 

energy efficiency 

of our homes whilst 

supporting those 

tenants in Fuel 

Poverty

Ensuring 

our properties 

are safe, secure and 

compliant, meeting 

all our landlord 

obligations

Modern 
Homes

Energy 
Efficiency 

and Decar-
bonisation

Asset 
Compliance 
and Building 

Safety

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

This Strategy concentrates on four key 
themes, each with an overarching strategic 
objective. These themes contain a range of 
activities, some which will be considered as 
‘Business as Usual’ and others which will 
drive innovation, cultural change and moving 
the council into a more pro-active asset 
management position.

Each theme is designed to be cross-cutting, 
in that it will be addressed through all 
workstreams and contributed to by all areas 
of the Property Services team and wider 
organisation. Due to the current environment 
where there are competing priorities and 
resources it is critical that any investment 
considers all facets of the asset rather than be 
driven by a particular programme or budget.

Actions resulting from this Strategy will be 
linked to one of these key themes, with a 
clear target. These actions will be used as a 
Golden Thread, reflected in service, team and 
individual objectives, giving clear responsibility 
and accountability for delivery. 

Strategic Links
This strategy has been developed 
considering the following, existing, 
council strategies:

Climate Change and 
Sustainability Strategy 
2020 - 2030

Corporate Strategy  
2020 - 2025

Housing Strategy  
2021 - 2025

Tenant Engagement 
Strategy 2021 - 2024

Page 30



17HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Asset Data, Planning and Service Delivery
Asset Data
Having accurate and up-to-date Stock 
Condition Surveys will be vital to understanding 
the current standard of our properties, as well 
as being able to carefully project the investment 
requirements over the 30 year business plan.

Following a recent Data Health Check, we 
feel confident that the elements of data we 
collect and the system (Keystone) that we 
use is robust. Even so, it has been identified 
that we need to refresh, update and improve 
the accuracy of the data collected, as well 
as increase the proportion of properties 
inspected recently. We will work closely with our 
Responsive Repairs contractor, interrogating 
their data to identify materials or components 
which are more costly to maintain or where we 
are seeing repeat failures. This will be used to 
continually improve our quality standards and 
specifications. We will also look to use this data 
to inform our New Build Design Standards.

We will implement the recommendations 
provided in the Data Health Check and 
develop a rolling programme of new stock 
condition surveys. We will also undertake 
a review of Keystone including future 
development and the investment required.

Strategic Objective
Understanding our properties and 
tenants to drive continual performance 
improvement and innovation

There is a requirement for additional investment 
to improve energy efficiency, as well as the 
ongoing investment in key components 
(kitchens, bathrooms & windows) and building 
safety. To effectively balance and manage 
these priorities we must ensure that we have 
a strong approach to understanding our 
assets, the service expectations of our tenants 
as well as the data to support our decision 
making. Additionally, this must be clear and 
well communicated to ensure that we take a 
co-ordinated and consistent approach to our 
investment in the housing stock.

We see this being managed through an 
improved approach to both asset and service 
data and intelligence, so we know as much 
as we possibly can about our tenants and 
their homes. 

Asset Data – Commitment 1

Implement the recommendations from the 
2021 Data Health Check by March 2023.  

Develop and deliver a rolling programme 
of Stock Condition Surveys to improve 
data validity and confidence – with 100% 
External Surveys and 70% Internal Surveys 
undertaken by March 2023.

Page 31



18HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Performance Monitoring 
of our homes
We have developed a bespoke Asset 
Appraisal Model (AAM). This allows us to 
identify performance trends between property 
types, relationships between planned 
investment and responsive maintenance 
and a range of indicators which will help us 
understand and target our investment.  It will 
also highlight those properties that are not 
contributing to our Corporate objective of 
meeting local housing need. We will review 
and further update the model and increasingly 
use the insights from the AAM to identify areas 
where more detailed data analysis and options 
appraisal are required.  

This will allow us to better understand the 
performance of homes and the optimal 
investment strategies going forward. The 
appraisal process will allow us to identify 
alternative opportunities for those properties, 
examples being remodelling, redevelopment 
or disposal.

Planning
We aim to create an efficient service so we 
can do more for our tenants and leaseholders.  
We recognise the need to better plan works 
and services, to achieve optimal value and 
return on the investment, especially where we 
anticipate using new technologies to meet our 
energy efficiency targets.

Not only will this allow us to create longer 
term budgets but also develop programmes 
of work which maximise our supply chain’s 
economies of scale and productivity.

Using data from our Stock Condition Surveys 
and Repairs service analysis, we will develop 
a five year Procurement Plan identifying the 
required packages of work. Through market 
engagement, we will understand how these 
can be appropriately instructed to suit both 
local and larger contractors and deliver best 
value to the council.

The Procurement Plan will also identify where 
Leaseholder (Section 20) consultation will 
be required. Our improved stock condition 
data will provide Major Works recovery 
estimates so we can better communicate to 
our leaseholders about their future service 
charging liabilities.

Asset Planning – 

Commitment 2

Develop 5-year Works 
and Procurement Plan 
by Dec 2022.  

Page 32



19HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Service Delivery
We accept that due to the upcoming expected 
changes in our external environment as well 
as the ambitious challenges we have set; we 
need to ensure that our internal resources are 
experienced, knowledgeable and operating 
at the highest level. We also want to embed 
a culture of cross-team working, shared 
learning and personal development. Based 
on the commitments within this  strategy and 
supporting Action Plan we will carry out a full 
team and service review to confirm that we 
have the a robust structure in place. This will 
provide a range of opportunities for our current 
team and also potentially bring new people to 
Waverley who can bring new perspectives to 
our approach.

Many of our services are delivered through 
Contractor partners, who are key to 
providing excellent services to our tenants 
and leaseholders. Creating collaborative 
relationships and ensuring monitoring of 
their services will help us continually drive 
improvement and innovation.

Asset Service 

Delivery – 

Commitment 3

Undertake a capacity 
review of internal staff 
resources by Nov 22.

Asset Service Delivery 

– Commitment 4

Create Contract Management 
and Reporting Framework to 
improve service delivery and 
feedback for all key contracts 
by March 2023.  

We will identify similar organisations where 
we can benchmark our services, costs and 
performance to gain best practice knowledge 
across the sector. This will be used to create 
improvement plans for our key contracts and 
set realistic KPI’s within our contracts and as 
commitments to our tenants.  

This information will be shared with our tenants 
and leaseholders to provide a transparent view 
of service delivery.

During this Strategy period, we will begin a 
new relationship with our Responsive Repairs 
partner and secure new contracts to deliver 
our planned works investment and energy 
efficiency measures. To support this, we will 
create a robust Contract Management and 
Reporting Framework which will provide a 
consistent and auditable measurement of 
our contractors’ performance. We will review 
our contract management processes, Key 
Performance Indicators (KPI’s) and satisfaction 
feedback methods to improve the way in which 
we manage our contracts. Working with our 
supply chain we will identify ways in which we 
can better use technology to capture tenant 
and leaseholder feedback, so as to improve 
contractor performance.

Page 33



20HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Modern Homes
Strategic Objective
To provide homes which are warm, secure, 
high quality and affordable and meet the 
needs for tenants of all income levels

Modern Homes Standard
A key priority is to provide quality homes. 
To support this, we will develop a Modern 
Homes Standard. This will communicate our 
commitments to tenants and leaseholders, 
what they can expect from us as their landlord 
and understand how they can support in 
maintaining their homes. We will ensure that 
this standard will include our approach to 
building safety, energy performance and the 
Decent Homes Standard but also the idea of 
lifetime homes, changes in lifestyles for example 
homeworking. The Modern Homes Standard 
will be developed alongside tenants and 
leaseholders to capture their thoughts, ideas 
and requirements. 

Proactive Maintenance 
As well as providing safe and modern homes, 
we also need to ensure that our homes are 
not detrimental to our tenant’s health and 
wellbeing. Over the past few years, we have 
been actively managing and understanding the 
challenges we have within our homes around 
Disrepair, Damp, Mould and Condensation 
(DM&C). We will create a range of remedial 
solutions which can be implemented quickly 
and easily, minimising disruption to tenants. 

Through our asset data and repairs history 
we will identify property archetypes or trends 
which may lead to future disrepair cases and 
develop longer term strategies to implement 
pre-emptive maintenance.

Modern Homes – 

Commitment 5

Develop a Modern Homes 
Standard, in partnership with 
tenants and leaseholders, which 
will be used to set our quality 
standards, by March 2023. 

Modern Homes – 

Commitment 6

Creating a clear management and 
resolution framework for Disrepair, 
Damp, Mould and Condensation to 
be implemented by September 2023 

Page 34



21HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Meeting Decent 
Homes Standard
One way in which we monitor the quality of 
our homes, is through their ‘decency’. This 
is largely aligned with the Decent Homes 
Standard and highlights any properties 
which have several key components such as 
kitchens, bathrooms, windows etc. that may 
require replacement.

We acknowledge we have not performed as 
well as we would like to have done in this area 
and have seen delays to programme delivery 
due to a range of external factors including 
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and in 
response to rent reduction measures taken 
by the council in 2015. This has resulted in a 
current level of non-decency of 15% (LAHS 
2021), meaning that this proportion of our 
properties has a number of major components 
over-due for replacement (for example kitchen, 
bathrooms and windows).

Modern Homes – 

Commitment 7

Reviewing the key component 
replacements due or overdue and 
develop a 2-year programme for 
replacement by Dec 2022.  

Develop a plan to meet the Decent 
Homes targets of 100% Decency by 
the end of the strategy (2030).

We estimate this backlog of component 
replacements to be in the region of £26m 
and therefore we will need to take careful 
consideration as to the impact of this within 
the Housing Revenue Account.  

This is a key area of focus for the council over 
the next two to three years to ensure that all 
our properties meet our standards. We will 
also consider any regulatory changes to the 
Decent Homes Standard following completion 
of the government’s consultation in September 
2022. The outcomes of any changes to the 
Decent Homes Standard will be incorporated 
within an agreed Modern Homes Standard.

We will review all component replacements 
dates that are identified for replacement 
Pre-2021 and use our programme of Stock 
Condition Surveys to validate the condition 
of these components. Where replacements 
are overdue we will develop a focused 
programme of works to improve our overall 
levels of ‘decency’.

Page 35



22HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Housing for Older People
Waverley currently has 236 properties 
specifically designated for tenants who are 
over the age of 55 years old – Senior Living 
homes. In addition, we have a large number 
of residents over this age who live within our 
General Needs properties.

Aligned with our Aging Well Strategy, we will 
work to support tenants who wish to live 
independently in their own home through the use 
of assisted technologies and home adaptations.  

Some tenants may be better suited to 
downsizing into one of our eight Senior Living 
schemes. We will continually review our 
schemes to ensure that they suit the needs 
of older people and are desirable to free up 
larger family homes. We will develop a specific 
sub-strand of this strategy for Older People, 
which will focus on:

•	 Reviewing of bedsit and small studio 
accommodation

•	 Ensuring schemes are Wi-Fi enabled and 
support those tenants still working

•	 Review digital upgrade requirements for 
warden call equipment

•	 Providing attractive and useful communal 
areas and amenities to provide Value for 
Money for tenants’ service charges

•	 Ensuring adequate services are in place such 
as disabled parking access, accessible waste 
provision and scooter storage

Adapting our homes
At times we are required to adapt our 
properties to meet the changing 
health or accessibility needs of 
our tenants. Where possible, we 
try and support this to allow our 
tenants to remain in their home 
and community as long as they 
can live independently, according 
to our Aids and Adaptions policy.

We work across the council with the 
housing, social care, and occupational 
therapy teams to develop solutions which will 
meet tenants’ specific needs. Some of these 
adaptations may be minor such as installing 
handrails, access ramps or external railings and 
the cost of these improvements will be funded 
through usual stock maintenance budgets.

In other cases, more extensive major 
adaptations are required – this could include:

•	 Full property conversion

•	 Installation of through-floor lifts

•	 Widening of doorways and access points

•	 Level flooring throughout

Again, we work to support these requirements 
but sometimes the budgets available do not meet 
the full cost of the work. Where this occurs, we 
must be sensible in assessing both the property 
and tenant to ensure that this investment is both 
sustainable for us and the tenant.

Where we are asked to carry out major 
adaptations, we will work with the tenant 
to understand their longer term needs to 
feel confident that the tenant will gain future 
benefit in this investment. In some cases, this 
may be through a formal property appraisal.

The risk to Waverley is that once the investment 
is made – the tenant may need to move home, 
for several reasons. We are committed to 
avoiding removal or decommissioning these 
major adaptations to let the property to another 
tenant without these requirements. 

Page 36



23HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Where we have adapted properties, we aim 
to work with our tenants and other providers 
in the borough to designate these homes as 
‘adapted’ and retain these for future tenants 
with similar needs. We feel that this will allow 
us to gain long term benefit where we carry 
out major adaptations.

Leasehold Properties
Whilst we have a relatively small proportion 
of leasehold properties, ensuring that we 
manage our services and relationships is 
vitally important. We hold a legal responsibility 
with leaseholders to maintain and renew the 
communal areas and external envelope of their 
homes. We must meet the requirements of the 
leases held and ensure that we are providing 
value for money. 

We feel that we can improve our services by 
providing leaseholders with a greater level 
of detail and foresight into upcoming major 
works investment. This will allow leaseholders 
to financially prepare for any payments they 
need to make under the terms of their lease. 
We will not only do this through statutory 
Section 20 consultation but also by providing 
forward investment plans.

We will continue to monitor the government’s 
approach to Leasehold Reform and adapt 
our operational and management processes 
accordingly.

Property Appraisals
A critical part of our Strategy is to ensure that 
we have the ‘right homes, in the right location, 
for the right people’.

Providing quality homes does not only relate to 
the condition of the property but also ensuring 
that it is the correct home for the resident; for 
example it has appropriate access, families 
are not over-occupied and single people are 
not having to heat and maintain a property too 
large for them.

We will identify those properties that may not 
be considered as a ‘traditional’ construction 
and therefore cost proportionately more to 
maintain for both the council and the tenant.

Through Stock Condition Surveys and 
the Asset Appraisal Model (AAM) we will 
continually review our portfolio to improve its 
overall performance. We will use and further 
develop our AAM to assess each property 
against a range of metrics (both financial and 
non-financial); showing us how our properties 
perform against a benchmark standard.

Annually, we will provide a statement as to our 
strategic approach to the council’s housing 
stock. We will identify those properties or 
blocks which require further review and 
individually appraise properties to develop 
longer term strategic asset management 
solutions. This may be to remodel, refurbish or 
dispose of properties. We will also identify land 
‘in-fill’ development opportunities to deliver 
further new homes.

As well as helping us identify investment 
return, these alternative opportunities will 
ensure our housing stock is continually 
meeting housing need.

Page 37



24HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Tenant Engagement
It is important that we work alongside our 
tenants and leaseholders to continually develop 
our quality standards and services to meet 
their requirements. We have identified that we 
need to further develop our communication 
and feedback from tenants and leaseholders, 
as well as providing opportunities for them to 
be more involved in our Asset Management 
function. It is critical that our tenants and 
leaseholders are informed at all stages of 
planning, delivery and completion of major 
works. This has been highlighted within our 
2021 STAR survey which we will aim to improve 
within the first two years of this strategy.

This has been clearly defined in our Tenant 
Involvement Strategy 2021 – 2024 and we will 
use this as our framework for consultation with 
those living within our homes.  

We will identify core aspects of our service 
delivery to be reviewed by our Tenants 
Scrutiny Group and work with them to 
identify challenges and improvements to our 
current service offer. We will also discuss 
the possibility of creating a sub-group of our 
Tenants Panel with specific focus on asset 
management and property maintenance.

Working alongside our Tenants Panel, 
Responsive Repairs and Planned Maintenance 
contractors we will also review all tenant facing 
documentation and communications to make 
sure that these meet best practice guidelines 
as well as being easy to understand and 
accessible to all.

We will improve the use of technology to allow 
tenants and leaseholders to book, track and 
feedback on repairs and planned investment, 
allowing for easier access to our services 
when it is convenient for them.

Garages
Our Garage stock is under constant review 
but, as with most landlords, the strategic and 
operational management is shared between 
Property Services, Housing Management 
and our Development Team. We must bring 
together the existing work that has been 
carried out to create a more robust Garage 
Strategy. This will focus on those areas where 
we can identify development potential to build 
new homes on HRA land, as well as creating 
improvement programmes to bring up the 
standard of our garages, maximise rental 
income and reduce localised ASB. It will also 
consider the potential for disposal.

Modern Homes – 

Commitment 8

Annual strategic appraisal 
statement to be issued for 
2022/2023; with appraisals/
reviews to be delivered 
throughout the financial year.

Modern Homes – 

Commitment 9

Create longer term Garage 
Strategy, which will address 
challenges for all areas of the 
council as well as identifying 
opportunities for new homes 
by December 2022.

Page 38



25HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Modern Homes – 

Commitment 10

We will carry out a review of our 
current engagement and feedback 
opportunities to develop a specific 
action plan for improvement by 
September 2022.  

We will also identify core service 
areas to be reviewed by our Scrutiny 
Panel by September 2022.

Page 39



26HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Energy Efficiency and Decarbonisation

Strategic Objective
To contribute to our Carbon Neutral target 
for our homes, blocks operations and Supply 
Chain by 2030.

Through the council’s Climate Emergency 
Declaration in 2019 and supporting Climate 
Change and Sustainability Strategy 2020; we 
have set an ambitious target to be a Carbon 
Neutral Council by 2030. This means that our 
property portfolio, our contractors and our own 
operations will all be delivering at this level.

This corporate objective is also partly supported 
through the governments Clean Growth 
Strategy, which has set a target for social 
housing providers to attain the minimum rating 
of EPC Band C for rented properties by 2035, 
and 2030 for ‘fuel poor’ households. The 
government see this as an important milestone 
towards the longer-term requirement of all 
homes being ‘carbon-zero’ by 2050, in the UK.

We are committed to being a Carbon Neutral 
Council by 2030 and this a clear priority within 
our asset management function.  Critical 
to meeting this target is to understand our 
current position and to develop a clear 
baseline which we can work against.  

We also need to work across the council 
and with our tenants to ensure that there 
is a standardised definition, terminology 
and understanding of what our corporate 
targets are. 

Energy Efficiency – 

Commitment 11

Clear definition and terminology 
of EPC Ratings, Net Carbon Zero, 
Carbon Neutral and Decarbonisation 
consulted and communicated with 
our tenants and leaseholders by 
September 2022

To meet this strategic objective we have 
undertaken an Energy Study against our 
housing portfolio; which has begun to 
develop our thinking and technical approach 
to devising a longer term strategy to 
becoming Carbon Neutral by 2030.

Page 40



27HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

•	 Baseline/potential energy 
performance by property

•	 Estimated cost projections 
by property and ward

•	 Data quality

•	 Business plan modelling

•	 High Investment/High 
Technical properties

•	 Measures required 
by property

•	 Works Programmes and 
Delivery methodology

•	 Pilot Projects and High Inv./
High Tech Appraisals

•	 Resources, Skills and Supply 
Chain Capacity

Baseline

Analysis

Recom-
menda-
tions

Energy Study – Our 
Baseline Position
From this study we now have a good 
understanding of what measures we need to 
carry out, as well as the long-term financial 
implications of this required investment. The 
study comprised of:

We manage the energy efficiency of our 
portfolio through Intelligent Energy software – 
this provides us with a high level of information 
about the current and potential efficiency of 
our homes.

We will work with the Climate Officers Group 
to provide outcome reporting on both the EPC 
levels and progress towards our overarching 
target as well as reductions in CO².

Energy Performance 
Certificate (EPC) Baseline
Approximately 83% of our homes meet or 
exceed the government’s 2030 EPC Band C 
target. Work is however required to improve 
the portfolio through retrofit measures, this 
may be to properties which fall below this 
rating or have high carbon emissions. 

EPC Band Current 
A 2 N/A
B 452 9.47%
C 3535 74.05%
D 763 15.98%
E 22 0.46%

As at March 2022, there is the potential 
that 83% of our homes can meet the EPC 
C government target, with the required 
investment. We can also see there are several 
properties which, regardless of investment, 
largely due to their construction will never 
meet the required standards or become 
Carbon Neutral. Therefore, we will need to 
consider alternative long-term strategies with 
these properties. 

Page 41



28HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Carbon Saving Baseline
To become carbon neutral by 2030 will 
largely be associated with decarbonising our 
properties. This is a significant challenge for 
Waverley: with 99% of our homes currently 
heated by gas boilers, the investment required 
to ‘convert’ to renewable heating systems 
including the necessary associated fabric 
improvement works is likely to require very 
high levels of investment.

From our Intelligent Energy software we 
estimate that our carbon emissions baseline is:

Houses		  8,472 Carbon Tonnes

Flats			   3,000 Carbon Tonnes

We will be working against a carbon saving of 
11,472 tonnes target from our housing alone.  

As stated, this is an estimate as every tenant 
will heat and run their home differently. 
Therefore, over the period of the strategy, in 
the move towards becoming carbon neutral 
we will work with our tenants to better 
understand the specific carbon emissions 
associated with their home.

Energy Efficiency – 

Commitment 12

Implementation of the Energy 
Study recommendations including 
development of a Property Services 
Energy Strategy, and reporting and 
monitoring framework, focusing 
specifically on our properties.

Including clarifying our EPC and 
Carbon Tonnage baselines by 
September 2023.

Cost of Energy Efficiency and Decarbonisation Improvements

Measures identified in current HRA 
Business Plan to 2030 £13,310,000

£4,950,000
Additional cost to bring all 
homes to EPC C by 2030

Additional cost to bring all homes to EPC 
A by 2030 (excl ASPH)

Additional cost to provide decarbonised 
heating by 2030

Total investment required £112,118,304

£66,631,000

£27,227,304

Page 42



29HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Energy Efficiency – 

Commitment 13

To develop baseline carbon 
outputs generated through 
our supply chain partners and 
operations by September 2022.

Create and implement a 
Contractors Carbon Reduction 
Plan across all contracts 
and areas of operations by 
December 2023

Investment Requirements
As with any financial projections relating to 
assets, detailed surveys, a strong understanding 
of the contractor market and identification of 
external funding is required. We have identified 
the properties that require improvement, 
have established budget costs and are now 
developing the detail and working on options 
to consider the optimal approach to delivery.

We will need to attract funding to support 
this investment and must develop designs, 
specifications, procurement and delivery 
models over the life of this strategy.

This shows that we have identified that we 
have currently £13.31m in the HRA budgets, 
allocated to works (such as heating systems, 
windows, roofing) which will contribute to 
meeting our carbon neutral targets. An 
additional £4.95m would be required to meet 
the government target of EPC C by 2030.

To ensure that Waverley is a carbon neutral 
council by 2030 then an additional £96m is 
estimated to move all properties away from fossil 
fuels and towards carbon neutrality position.

One area that we need to improve visibility 
of and gain a better understanding of the 
baseline position, is the carbon output from 
our contractor activities. Realistically a high 
level of carbon emissions, associated with 
our operations, is driven by our contractor 
partners. As our aim is be a carbon neutral 
council by 2030 then this carbon output must 
be factored into our overall baseline.

Aside from the baseline position, we need to 
work with our partners to incorporate their 
net carbon zero strategies into our activities 
and ensure that these a key contractual 
arrangement. We also need them to share 
knowledge, experience and best practice 
from their other clients, to constantly grow our 
understanding in this area.

We will actively pass on our carbon neutral 
targets to our contractors and by March 2022 
have Carbon Reduction Key Performance 
Indicators included in all of our current contracts.

£13.31m  
in the HRA 

budgets, allocated 
to works (such as 
heating systems, 

windows, roofing)

£4.95m 
required to meet 
the government 
target of EPC C 
by 2030.

£96m
needed to ensure 
that Waverley is a 
carbon neutral 

council by 2030

Page 43



30HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Technical Philosophy 
and Approach
Our intention is to always take a ‘Fabric First’ 
approach when investing in our properties, 
to meet a carbon neutral position. Not only 
does this provide the most sustainable and 
cost-efficient improvements for our tenants 
but is also aligned to the Social Housing 
Decarbonisation Fund principles.  

Examples of this may be cavity, loft or wall 
insulation, replacement windows and doors 
or more efficient lighting (especially in the 
case of communal areas in blocks and Senior 
Living Schemes).

To reach a carbon neutral position more 
intrusive and complex measures may need to 
be taken. This may include:

•	 Replacement of gas heating/hot water 
systems from >95% of the stock, and 
replacement with electrical/other low carbon 
fuels/systems

•	 More extensive and complex insulation of 
roofs, walls, floors and external fenestration 

•	 A whole-house retrofit strategy most 
probably following the principles of PAS2035

When developing works and investment 
programmes we will review all measures to 
understand both their Lifecycle/Whole Carbon 
cost to the council and our tenants. This is to 
ensure that firstly we are achieving the best 
levels of improvements (in terms of carbon 
savings and EPC ratings) for the investment 
required. Secondly, we will project the impact 
any new or replacement measures will have on 
the end costs to our tenants.

We will also identify the long-term maintenance, 
replacements (such as invertors on Solar PV 
Panels) and lifecycles for any measures to 
embed this into our Stock Database, Keystone, 
and our HRA business planning process.

Gas Boiler Replacement 
A key element of meeting our carbon neutral 
target by 2030 will be the replacement of 
existing gas boilers or other solid fuel heating 
systems. It is also expected that as part of the 
revised Decent Homes Standard which is due 
in 2023 will be the directive that no new gas 
boilers can be installed in existing properties 
post-2035.

The council is committed to phasing out gas 
boilers as soon as possible but recognises that 
there needs to be a balance between provision 
of heating equipment to our residents and the 
short to medium term challenges of non-gas 
alternatives. These include cost, availability and 
deliverability at scale.

Whilst we need to carry out further tenant and 
internal consultation, our initial principles when 
replacing gas boilers are:

•	 We will in every case explore the option for a 
non-gas alternative to installing gas boilers

•	 We will aim no longer install any new gas 
boilers after March 2027

•	 From April 2022 we will reduce the lifecycle of 
a gas boiler to 8 years

•	 We will only install gas boilers from April 2027 
to March 2035 where there are no cost-
effective solutions available, which must be 
specific to an individual property

There are several considerations and impacts 
of changing our approach to the installation of 
gas boilers and we will develop a specific gas 
boiler replacement strategy to help inform our 
approach.

Page 44



31HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Energy Efficiency – 

Commitment 14

Develop gas boiler strategy, 
with detailed consultation within 
the council and with tenants by 
March 2023. Strategy should 
contain detailed cost benefit/
impact assessment to both the 
council and tenants.

External Funding
To support the Clean Growth Strategy, the 
government has realised the Social Housing 
Decarbonisation Fund (SHDF) to be accessed 
over a 10-year period. This will provide funding  
to encourage and enable social housing 
providers to accelerate their energy efficiency  
and decarbonisation plans. The fund aims to:

•	 Upgrade a significant amount of the social 
housing stock currently below EPC rating C up 
to that standard,

•	 Deliver warmer and more energy-efficient homes, 

•	 Reduce carbon emissions,

•	 Reduce energy bills, and tackle fuel poverty  
and support the creation of ‘green’ jobs

We also need to investigate and understand 
the alternative heating provisions within the 
market. Previously we have carried out a 
small installation pilot of Air Source Heat 
Pumps and we are working with tenants to 
understand the benefits, challenges and costs 
of these to apply to a wider roll out. We will 
also continually monitor the outcomes from 
the Ockford Ridge Retrofit Programme where 
a range of energy efficiency measures have 
been applied and we can apply learnings to 
existing housing stock.

Energy Efficiency – 

Commitment 15

We aim to submit a funding 
application in Spring 2022 
for Wave 2 of Social Housing 
Decarbonisation Fund.

Using our improved data we will 
aim to secure funding for eligible 
projects working towards our 
over-arching objective.  

Page 45



32HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Resources, Skills and 
Contractor Capacity
The installation and ongoing maintenance of 
energy efficiency measures will be, in some 
cases, new to the council and the social 
housing sector as a whole. It is important 
that a skills audit and resource gap analysis is 
carried out for the council and their contractors. 
Where required contracts may be required 
for additional servicing and repair of complex 
Mechanical and Electrical (M&E) systems.  

It may be necessary to identify new resources, 
training and upskilling to further develop 
the council’s technical capacity, project 
management and delivery. We will provide 
training to our teams to gain better knowledge 
in carbon awareness, technical solutions 
and cost management for new technologies 
entering the market.

Tenant Education and 
Knowledge
Reaching a carbon neutral position by 2030 
will have an impact on our tenants and we 
are responsible for ensuring that any changes 
to people’s homes are clearly explained and 
supported. This will be delivered through a 
suite of tenant training on new technologies, 
as and when they are installed. We will also 
work with tenants to help them understand 
how behaviour and lifestyle can also have a 
positive reduction on their energy costs. We 
will identify partners to whom we can signpost 
tenants, who are able to give further support 
on both energy efficiency and managing their 
energy expenses.

There is the potential, working alongside our 
Community Development colleagues, for 
us to create skills and training opportunities 
to further develop the Green Economy in 
Waverley. As we will be at the forefront of 

meeting carbon neutrality by 2030 we will be 
able to help our tenants find employment and 
training within this emerging marketplace.

We will work alongside our contractor partners 
to create and deliver these skills, training and 
employment opportunities through their social 
value commitments.

Addressing Fuel Poverty
Alongside the investment in our properties, 
we also will support our tenants in addressing 
Fuel Poverty. We must ensure that we do 
not increase tenants’ energy bills through the 
installation of new or alternative technologies. 
We will do this by carrying out Whole Life 
Carbon and Cost Assessments for the 
measures that we would be installing. This will 
compare the energy efficiency and/or carbon 
reduction against any potential increase in 
energy usage and therefore cost to the tenant.  

Through our Intelligent Energy software and 
from the findings of the Energy Study we will 
be able to identify those tenants who may 
already be in Fuel Poverty and aim to prioritise 
works and improvements to their homes.

Energy Efficiency – 

Commitment 16

All energy efficiency measures will be 
assessed to understand impact to 
tenants’ energy costs and not to place 
them in fuel poverty by March 2023. 
We will actively promote the benefit 
of decarbonisation improvements to 
mitigate rises in utility costs. We will 
provide training and guidance to support 
efficient use of new technologies.

Page 46



33HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Compliance and Building Safety

Strategic Objective
Ensuring our properties are safe, secure and 
compliant, meeting all our landlord obligations

Delivery & Monitoring 

•	 Policies

•	 Procedures

•	 Action Trackers

•	 Data Confidence

•	 Compliance Reporting

•	 Risk Management

•	 Financial Projections

•	 Tenant Assurance and communication

Fire

Legionella

Asbestos

Gas

Electrical

Lifts

As we have shown, the focus on compliance 
and building safety has rightly been brought to 
the forefront of the housing sector. We are no 
exception in that ensuring our properties are 
both safe and secure is our highest priority.  
We must maintain our compliance levels 
and monitor safety on an ongoing basis. We 
categorise compliance into six key areas:

F

L

A

G

E

L

Page 47



34HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

We will review all our core compliance 
areas to ensure that there is the appropriate 
separation of responsibilities between the 
council and contractors. This is to make 
sure that the relevant checks and balances 
are in place to mitigate further risk. We will 
assess both our internal processes and that 
of our contractors to confirm all relevant 
qualifications, accreditations and quality 
management processes are present and 
retained throughout delivery.

Compliance and Building 

Safety – Commitment 18

Assess the current roles and 
responsibilities, both internally and 
with our contractors, to ensure 
segregation of responsibilities as well 
as qualifications, accreditations and 
process compliance by July 2022.

Compliance Management 
Systems
Due to the critical and increasing nature of this 
area of work, we have identified that we require 
better systems and processes to monitor our 
activities. Having a robust reporting system 
will allow us to ensure that our servicing and 
remedial works programmes are continually 
monitored and can provide evidence and 
assurance to tenants, leaseholders and 
stakeholders of our overall compliance.

Our objective is that this system can be used 
across the council, being able to monitor 
remedial works (via Property Services) and 
management actions (via Housing and Estate 
management teams).

This will be supported by an overarching 
compliance framework which will address 
the points required for the delivery and 
monitoring of these areas of compliance. 
Working alongside our development team we 
will embed this framework into the handover 
process for any new build properties. 

Compliance and Building 

Safety – Commitment 17

To review our current management 
and reporting processes and 
understand the potential need for 
improved systems to better support 
compliance by December 2022.

Create supporting Compliance 
Management Framework by 
March 2023.

Page 48



35HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Building Safety
In a response to the Fire Safety Act and 
Building Safety Bill, we acknowledge that 
we need to develop more detailed servicing 
and remedial works plans that we can share 
with our tenants and leaseholders. This is 
especially important where leaseholders may 
be responsible for a proportion of these costs.

Where required, we will provide building specific 
safety files which will detail all relevant information 
about the building and its tenants; this will be 
mandatory for our Sheltered Schemes.

These servicing programmes and building 
safety files will allow us to gain more 
foresight into the upcoming risk, liability 
and investment that we will be required to 
maintain for compliance and safety.

They will also allow us to have a more  
co-ordinated approach to works delivery,  
from both a responsive and planned 
investment perspective. 

Compliance and Building 

Safety – Commitment 19

Develop five-year Servicing 
Programmes with estimated 
remedial works creating a long-
term financial projection for 
building compliance and safety; 
considering the impact on 
Service Charges and Leaseholder 
Recovery by March 2023.

We will investigate the use of technologies, 
such as sensors which can monitor levels of 
CO², damp and component life, to provide 
real time insight to the compliance and 
performance of our properties.

This would allow us to take a more preventative 
approach to compliance and building safety, 
which can be evidenced to our tenants.

Compliance and Building 

Safety – Commitment 20

Create a suite of communication 
templates to be provided annually for 
tenants and leaseholders detailing all 
relevant compliance documentation 
(ie FSRA’s), servicing plans and 
compliance assurance by March 2024.

Page 49



36HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Communication, 
Monitoring and 
Review
The strategy will be communicated across 
the council, with tenants, leaseholders and 
external stakeholders. We will provide a 
summary of the strategy to new tenants when 
they move into their home.  

The strategy will largely be monitored through 
the supporting Action Plan, which will be 
cascaded into the Property Services Team 
Plan, individual targets and personal objectives.

Operationally the strategy will be monitored 
quarterly, focussing on delivering the projects 
and initiatives identified within the Action Plan.  
We will create an Asset Management Steering 
Group, which will be supported and facilitated 
by external consultants to provide a level of 
independence, challenge and insight to sector 
best practice.  

The strategy will be reviewed every three years, 
with the supporting Action Plan being advised 
and updated. At these review points, new 
strategic objectives and commitments may 
be developed to replace those completed or 
reacting to changes in the external environment.

Asset Management 
Strategy Governance
The governance and responsibility of 
strategic delivery will be held by the Head 
of Operations. They will ensure, through the 
Asset Management Steering Group, that the 
strategic objectives are being maintained and 
actions are progressed and completed.

The Steering Group will provide a quarterly 
update which can be shared with the Executive 
Team, Tenants Panel and Members. The 
strategy and action plan outcomes will be 
reported to the Landlord Services Advisory 
Board every six months; providing a review of 
activity and plans of the upcoming areas of 
focus. In addition to this update the Landlord 
Services Advisory Board will be consulted 
on any key projects, recommendations and 
changes to policy, procedure or operations and 
approved by the Portfolio Holder for Housing.

We will also review our progress to 
tenants and leaseholders through regular 
communications, newsletters and consultation 
meetings. Throughout the strategy we 
will invite feedback from tenants as to our 
progress and work to include formal feedback 
into our biennial STAR survey.

A full Equality Impact Assessment of this 
strategy document has been carried out.

Page 50



HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-2030

Follow us:

twitter.com/waverleybc

facebook.com/waverleybc

youtube.com/WaverleyBorough

instagram.com/yourwaverley

linkedin.com/company/
waverley-borough-council

Contact us
Waverley Borough Council,
The Burys,
Godalming,
Surrey,
GU7 1HR
01483 523333

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 | P a g e  

 

WAVERLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LANDLORD SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD 
31 MARCH 2022 

 
Title:  

HOUSING PERFORMANCE REPORT Q3 2021-2022 

(OCTOBER – DECEMBER 2022)  

AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS REVIEW 

 
Portfolio Holder: Co-Portfolio Holders for Housing Paul Rivers and Nick Palmer 
 
Head of Service: Hugh Wagstaff, Head of Housing Operations and Andrew Smith, 

Head of Housing Deliver and Communities 
 
Key decision: No  
 
Access:  Public 

 
1. Purpose and summary 

 
The Corporate Performance Report, set out at Annexe 1, provides an analysis of 
the Council’s performance for the third quarter of 2021-22.  
 
The Housing Service performance information has been extracted for the 
Landlord Services Advisory Board.  The full performance report can be found on 
the council website.   
 
The organisation conducts an annual review of the corporate performance 
indicators to evaluate their continued appropriateness in the light of any new 
legislation or changes to organisational needs and priorities.  The proposed 
Landlord Services Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are set out at Annexe Two. 
 
The report is being presented to each of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
and the Landlord Services Advisory Board for comment and any 
recommendations they may wish to make to senior management or the 
Executive.  

 
 
2. Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Board considers the performance of the housing 
service areas, and 

i identifies any areas for comment or further exploration,  
ii makes any recommendations to senior management or the Portfolio 

Holders for Housing as appropriate,  
iii advises the Portfolio Holders for Housing to request HRA capital budgets 

are routinely reported in the Quarterly Corporate Performance Report, and 
iv advises the Portfolio Holders for Housing to approve the 2022/23 KPIs. 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6

https://modgov.waverley.gov.uk/documents/s43887/Q2%202021-22%20Corporate%20Performance%20Report%20Annexe%201%20-%20Final%2012%20Nov%202021.pdf


 

2 | P a g e  

 

 

 
3. Reason for the recommendation 

 
The quarterly review of the Council’s performance and annual review of KPIS, is 
subject to internal as well as external scrutiny. This approach allows for a 
transparent assessment on how each service performs against its set goals and 
targets. It also allows Board members to raise any areas of concern to senior 
management and the Executive, which in turn drives service improvement.   

 
 
4. Background 

4.1 The Council’s Performance Management Framework provides the governance 
structure to enable the delivery of the Council’s objectives.  Performance monitoring 
is conducted at all levels of the organisation, from the strategic corporate level, 
through the operational/team level, leading to individual staff performance targets. 
The focus of this comprehensive report is the corporate level performance analysis.  
The data is collated at the end of each quarter and a broad range of measures have 
been included to provide a comprehensive picture, and these are: 
 

• Key performance indicators  

• Progress of Internal Audit recommendations 

• Complaints monitoring 

• Workforce data 

• Financial forecasting  

• Housing Delivery monitoring 
 

4.2 The report is comprised of the corporate overview section with the Chief 
Executive’s comments, followed by service specific sections with Heads of Service 
feedback on the performance in their area. The report is used as a performance 
management tool by senior management.  

 
4.3 Annexe One has been edited to provide performance related to the landlord 
service. 
 
5  The Corporate Performance Report provides an overview of the financial position 
relating to revenue budgets.  The Housing Revenue Account is split into “revenue” 
for the daily running costs, management and responsive repairs and “capital” 
budgets for, improvements and new homes.  Officers recommend that housing 
service capital budget information is added to the Quarterly Corporate Performance 
Report to provide comprehensive information to Board members to monitor and 
review the landlord services. 
 
4.4  Once a year the organisation engages in a review of KPIs in order to ensure 
that they are still fit for purpose. This exercise takes place in January and 
February with proposals travelling to O&S Committees in March, followed by the 
formal approval by the Executive at the end of March / early April.  The collection 
of any new indicators begins at the start of every new financial year, on the 1 
April. The reviewed Landlord Services Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and 
commentary are set out at Annexe Two. 

Page 54



 

3 | P a g e  

 

 
5. Relationship to the Corporate Strategy and Service Plans 

Waverley’s Performance Management Framework and the active management of 
performance information helps to ensure that Waverley delivers its Corporate 
Priorities.  
 
The Corporate Performance Indicators were developed to serve as an on-going 
measure, required to follow the progress against key goals and objectives 
specified in the annual service plans 2022-2025 and the current Corporate 
Strategy 2020-25 priorities. 

 
 
6. Implications of decision 

6.1 Resource (Finance, procurement, staffing, IT)  

The report presents the performance status of a wide range of measures from 
across the Council, including the quarterly update on the budget position and 
staffing situation.  

 
6.2 Risk management 

The scrutiny process of key performance indicators, goals and targets, laid out in 
this report, allows for an ongoing assessment of potential risks arising from 
underperformance and the monitoring of improvement or mitigation actions put in 
place to address potential issues. 

 
6.3 Legal 

There are no legal implications arising directly from this report, however some 
indicators are based on statutory returns, which the council must make to the 
Government.  

 
6.4 Equality, diversity and inclusion 

There are no direct equality, diversity or inclusion implications in this report. 
Equality impact assessments are carried out when necessary across the council 
to ensure service delivery meets the requirements of the Public Sector Equality 
Duty under the Equality Act 2010. 
 

6.5 Climate emergency declaration 

The report does not have direct climate change implications. The service plans, 
the delivery of which is monitored through this report, were revised in January 
2020 to take into consideration new environmental and sustainability objectives 
arising from the Corporate Strategy 2020-2025 in light of the Climate Emergency 
introduced by the Council in September 2019.  

 
 
7. Consultation and engagement 

The report goes through an internal sign off process by the Senior Management 
Team. The external scrutiny stage starts with the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees at the quarterly committee cycle and monthly Landlord Services 

Page 55

https://modgov.waverley.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=29663#mgDocuments
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Portals/0/Documents/services/council-information/about-waverley-borough-council/Corporate%20Strategy%202020_25%20final.pdf?ver=uiWOaQ4Yjh4iZX1scU8DFg%3d%3d
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Portals/0/Documents/services/council-information/about-waverley-borough-council/Corporate%20Strategy%202020_25%20final.pdf?ver=uiWOaQ4Yjh4iZX1scU8DFg%3d%3d
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Portals/0/Documents/services/council-information/about-waverley-borough-council/Corporate%20Strategy%202020_25%20final.pdf?ver=uiWOaQ4Yjh4iZX1scU8DFg%3d%3d
https://modgov.waverley.gov.uk/documents/s31507/APPENDIX%201%20-%20Climate%20emergency%20motion%20Council.pdf


 

4 | P a g e  

 

Advisory Board, if required due to any substantial recommendations, travels to 
the Executive to seek its approval. 

 
 
8. Other options considered 

Standing report on the Landlord Services Advisory Board and O&S Committees 
Agenda, no further considerations required.   

 
9. Governance journey 

The Landlord Services Advisory Board will pass on their comments and 
recommendations to senior management and/or the Portfolio Holders for 
Housing, who will initiate any improvement actions where required.   

 
Annexes: 
Annexe One Q3 2021-22 Corporate Performance Report – Landlord Services Extract  
Annexe Two Annual Review of Corporate KPIs Set 2022-23 – Landlord Services Extract 

 
Background Papers 
There are no background papers (as defined by Section 100D(5) of the Local Government 
Act 1972) relating to this report. 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 
 
Name:  Nora Copping and Annalisa Howson 
Title:   Policy and Performance Officer and Housing Service Improvement Manager 
Telephone: 01483 523 465 and 01483 523453   

E-mail:  nora.copping@waverley.gov.uk and annalisa.howson@waverley.gov.uk 
 
Agreed and signed off by: 
Legal Services: N/A – standing report 
Head of Finance: Internal SMT meeting on 15 February 2022 
Strategic Director: Internal SMT meeting on 15 February 2022 
Portfolio Holders: Executive Briefing meeting on 22 February 2022 
 

Page 56

mailto:nora.copping@waverley.gov.uk


 

 

Annexe One 

 

Corporate  

Performance Report  

Q3 2021/22 
(October – December 2021)  

Document Version: Final version 25 February 2022 

LANDLORD SERVICES EXTRACT: 28 February 2022 

Lead Officer: Nora Copping 

Title: Policy & Performance Officer 

Telephone: 01483 523 465 

Email: nora.copping@waverley.gov.uk 

Page 57



2 | P a g e  

 

1 Performance Assessment with RAG Rating (Red, Amber, Green)  

The Report content has been presented in a visual format and a further explanation of the RAG rating 

used throughout the report can be found in the tables below. 

1.1 Performance Indicators RAG Rating per Status Type 

Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) Status 
Types  

Explanation of the Status Type  

Data only or Data Not 
Available/ collection on 
pause (in Grey) 

Data only indicators are those that monitor performance of an area 
which has not yet established performance patterns allowing an 
improvement target to be introduced, or those which are out of our 
direct control such as the number of queries we receive from our 
residents. 

We also indicate in grey, statistics for which we were not able to obtain 

up-to-date figures or areas for which the monitoring activity has been 
temporarily suspended/paused.  

Green The indicator has performed on or above a set target, no concern.  

Amber 
Up to 5% off target – Officers investigate the causes of 

underperformance to establish if an improvement action is required. 

Red 
More than 5% off target – Officers investigate the causes of 

underperformance to establish if an improvement action is required. 

1.2 Service Plans, Internal Audit, Project Management 

Action Status Types Explanation of the Status Rating Type 

Completed (in Green) Action was completed. 

On Track (in Green) Action is on track for completion by established due date. 

Off track – action taken / 
in hand (in Amber) 

Action has fallen slightly off target, on cost, time or quality, however 
corrective/improvement actions are already undertaken to bring it back 
on track. 

Off track – requires 

escalation (in Red) 

Action has fallen off target, on cost, time or quality and a managerial 

intervention/escalation is required in order to bring it back on track. 

Cancelled (in Grey) Cancelled Action Status indicates that we will no longer pursue delivery 

of this action. 

Deferred (in Grey) Deferred Action Status indicates that the action will not be pursued at 

present but will/might be in the future. 

Transferred (in Grey) Transferred Action Status indicates that although the action was not yet 

fully completed its delivery will continue in the coming year or that the 
action ownership has now changed. 

 

  

Page 58



Last update: 18/03/2022 16:12                                                                                                                                       Return to Report Sections Summary 

 

3 | P a g e  

 

2 Corporate Dashboards – Summary of All Services (remit of Policy O&S) 

2.1 Performance Summary from the Management Board on Key Successes, Lessons 

Learnt, Areas of Concern – Q3 2021/22 

 Q3 Chief Executive’s summary:  

 

This report covers the council’s performance for October to December 2021. The chapters provide 

detail on each service. 

The Covid pandemic continues to present challenges to the community and the council. In this quarter, 

we prepared for the complications of winter and maintained service delivery. The national Plan B 

necessitated a return to greater remote working and Full Council meetings continued to take place in 

person (as per legislation), but in the Wilfrid Noyce Centre in Godalming to provide greater distancing 

between those attending. 

At the end of the quarter, the Government announced its financial settlement for local authorities. 

While we were disappointed that it was only a one-year settlement, the roll-over of New Homes Bonus 

provided an unexpected modest cushion for the coming year while we continue to transform the 

organisation to make the necessary medium-term savings. At the end of Q3, we are projecting a 

modest in-year budget surplus. 

Particular highlights and events during this quarter included: 

• Waverley, Farnham, Guildford, Hampshire and Rushmoor Councils supported Surrey County 

Council in purchasing Tice’s Meadow and agreed to develop a long-term management plan. 

• A draft supplementary planning document for Dunsfold Park was published for consultation. 

• The toilet facilities at two of the council’s green spaces won the Loo of the Year award. 

• Waverley hosted climate action workshops to coincide with the COP26 climate change 

conference. 

• The Lord Lieutenant’s award recognised the contribution of Waverley and Biffa’s waste services 

in supporting the community during the Covid pandemic. 

• Two new eco-homes were opened for tenants who were previously homeless. 

• Ten of Waverley’s parks and green spaces were recognised by the Green Flag Award Scheme. 

• The council launched its Thriving Communities Commissioning Fund for not-for-profit 

organisations that deliver health and wellbeing services. 

• I commenced in my new role of Joint Chief Executive for Waverley and Guildford Borough 

Councils on 1 December. I began to meet the teams and start implementing the councils’ 

resolutions for a single management team and an inter-authority agreement to provide the 

governance framework for future decision-making. 

Tom Horwood, Chief Executive 

  

Page 59



Last update: 18/03/2022 16:12                                                                                                                                       Return to Report Sections Summary 

 

4 | P a g e  

 

3 Service Dashboard – Housing Operations (remit of Services O&S) 

This service area includes the following teams: Asset Management, Housing Management, Property 

Services, Rent Account and Senior Living.  The service is also supported by the Service Improvement 

Team.  

3.1 Key Successes & Lessons Learnt, Areas of Concerns  

 Q3 2021/22 Summary from Head of Service 

During the third quarter of 2021/22 the team managed a full range of activities and initiatives to 

improve services, homes and communities for tenants. 

The Community Development team drew on funding from developers Thakeham, to work with 

Community Orchard Project South East (COPSE) and residents at Ockford Ridge to develop a new 

orchard at Eashing Cemetery.  12 stone fruit (plum, cherry and greengage) trees were planted to form 

the start of a trail.  Over the next five years a further 60 saplings will be added.  The project will protect 

and enhance the environment and create a haven for wildlife and residents alike. 

The Property Service team promoted the benefits of PV solar panels by contacting all tenants at the 

460 homes with solar panels.  They shared some top tips to make sure they make the most of the free 

electricity generated during the day.  General information on energy saving tips were also included and 

published on the Waverley website. 

I was delighted to be advised by the Station Commander from Surrey Fire and Rescue Authority, that 

the enforcement notice was withdrawn at one of our Senior Living Schemes.    When fire safety risks 

were raised the team worked promptly to resolve immediate issues and procure works to mitigate the 

risks. The Station Commander stated, “The work undertaken so far, coupled with the assurances you 

have given me around the completion of ongoing works, along with the presence of the Evacuation 

Management Team are sufficient for me to consider that enforcement action is no longer the most 

appropriate course to take.”  Work to remove the timber ceiling and install a new fire alarm system has 

been completed and compartmentation works have started. I thank the residents for their 

understanding and patience with the intrusion of works and visitors as we ensure their current and 

future safety. 

It was pleasing to see the first family from Afghanistan settle, in their new home, in the borough, this 

quarter.  The Housing Management team worked with the community to furnish the home and give a 

warm welcome to the family.  The new Support Officer is assisting the family to form local connections 

and integrate into the community.  The Council has pledged to support five to ten families over the next 

two years, subject to available suitable homes.  The team are delighted to be able to contribute to the 

humanitarian initiative and support Afghan refugees. 

The whole Housing Operations team were invited to complete the NHS Making Every Contact Count 

Training.  The training is to support anyone who wants to make better life choices to improve their 

health and wellbeing. MECC focuses on the lifestyle issues that, when addressed, can make the 

greatest improvement to an individual’s health.  As well as signposting and encouraging residents to 

improve their health, the team members have successfully quit smoking, reduced alcohol intake and 

become more active. 

Quarter Three was also a reflective and planning time as we completed preparatory work for the 

Housing Revenue Account budgets and service plan.  Reviewing tenants’ feedback and local and 

national issues to inform the development of budgets and plans. 

I worked with Democratic Services, the Leader, Portfolio Holder for Housing and Housing Service 

Improvement Team to create the Landlord Services Advisory Board.  The Board was formed under the 

Executive Working Group protocol to promote tenant and leaseholder engagement in decisions 

Page 60

https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Services/Housing/Council-tenants/Home-advice-and-improvements/Saving-energy


Last update: 18/03/2022 16:12                                                                                                                                       Return to Report Sections Summary 

 

5 | P a g e  

 

relating to the Council’s housing stock and to provide assurance that regulatory requirements are met.  

The first meeting was held in December with board members gaining awareness and discussing the 

housing operations performance and HRA budget. 

For Quarter Three I recognise the Tenants Panel and Tenant Involvement Officer as my Star team.  

They have continued to engage with tenants bringing issues to my attention and held a successful 

hybrid AGM in October.  Tenants attended in person and virtually to hear Cllr Follows and myself 

speak on our commitment to improving the responsive repairs service and listening to tenants.  In 

addition, they played an integral role in the development of the new Landlord Services Advisory Board. 

Hugh Wagstaff, Head of Housing Operations 

 

3.2 Key Performance Indicators Status  

 Table of Service Specific Performance Indicators presenting data for the five past 

quarters and their performance against the target 

 

KPI Description 
Data 
Type 

Q3 
2020/21 

Q4 
2020/21 

Q1 
2021/22 

Q2 
2021/22 

Q3 
2021/22 

 
Target 

HO1 

Total current tenants rent arrears as 
a percentage of the total estimated 
gross debit (lower outturn is 
better) 

% 0.96% 0.96% 0.87% 0.96% 1.18% 

1%  
2021/22 

0.7% 
2020/21 

HO2 
Average number of working days 
taken to re-let 'normal void' property 
(lower outturn is better) 

Day
s 

60 36 26 29 28 20 

HO3 

Percentage of annual boiler 
services and gas safety checks 
undertaken on time (higher outturn 
is better) 

% 99.88% 99.40% 99:90% 100% 99.90% 100% 

HO4 

Responsive Repairs: How would 
you rate the overall service you 
have received? (Tenants' view of 
the service) (higher outturn is 
better) 

% 
Suspende

d until 

April 2022 

Suspende
d until 

April 2022 

Suspende
d until 

April 2022 

Suspende
d until 

April 2022 

Suspende
d until 

April 2022 
93% 

HO4b
* 

Responsive Repairs:  
Average number of days to  
complete a repair (lower  
outturn is better) * 

Day
s 

Replaces 
HO4 until 
April 2022 

 14 15 15 7 

HO5 

Responsive Repairs: Was repair 
completed right first time? (Tenants' 
view of the service) (higher outturn 
is better) 

% 
Suspende

d until 
April 2022 

Suspende

d until 
April 2022 

Suspende

d until 
April 2022 

Suspende

d until 
April 2022 

Suspende

d until 
April 2022 

78% 

HO5b
* 

Responsive Repairs:  
Percentage of jobs not  
completed within 28 days  
(lower outturn is better) * 

% 

Replaces 
HO5b 

until April 
2022 

 22% 15% 32% 10% 

HO6 
% of tenancy audits completed 
against scheduled appointments in 
a quarter. 

% N/A N/A 91% 
Data not 
available 

Data not 
available 

97% 

* Interim PI. To return to tenants’ satisfaction PI when new contract is live in 2022 for 2022/23 reporting. 

 

 

 

Page 61



Last update: 18/03/2022 16:12                                                                                                                                       Return to Report Sections Summary 

 

6 | P a g e  

 

 Comment:  

The team have continued to be challenged during the year with the aftermath and ongoing impact of 

pandemic on tenants’ income and contractors’ resources.  

At the end of December there were £355k arrears against an expected annual rent roll of £30m.  400 

tenants have reported a financial impact due to COVID-19 and there has been an increase in UC 

applications with 632 new claims since 1 March 2020. Around 1,350 tenants are in arrears with 85% of 

tenants in arrears owing less that £500.  50% of the arrears is due to 15% of tenants in arrears. Since 

the reintroduction of notices and possession action in October 2021 the team are carefully considering 

the larger arrears cases to seek legal remedies to collect the arrear. The team currently have one Rent 

Account Officer vacancy which with the Christmas period has impacted on the team’s performance.  

There were three homes without gas certificates at the end of December- however all these were 

visited and updated in early January. 

The responsive repairs and voids contract is becoming more established; however, the Christmas 

period and staff illness has impacted the performance.  

 

3.3 Service Plans – Progress Status 

 Summary Table and Pie Chart 

Q3 Progress on Housing Operations Service Plans 2021/24  

Total No % 

Completed 9 43 

On track 12 47 

Off track - action taken / in hand 0 0 

Off track - requires escalation 0 0 

Cancelled / Deferred /Transferred 0 0 

Comment: The team are progressing with service plan actions.  Completing all three actions to ensure 

the service is financially robust and meeting the needs of residents by working with tenants to 

implement the 2021 rent increase and reviewing the Recovery, Change and Transformation project.  

The team have also worked with partners to deliver health and wellbeing initiatives. 

 Detailed Table presenting specific Service Plans actions on exception basis  

N/A 

 

3.4 Internal Audit Actions Progress Status 

At the end of third quarter there were two outstanding Internal Audit Actions for this service area:  
IA21/15.003.1 Clear policy of the recharging of utilities- Service charges re Leasehold Flats 
IA21/19.007.3 Review of Reports - IT systems administration 
 
The utility recharge policy is dependent on other documents highlighted within the audit – all due to be 
completed by revised target date 31 March 2022. 
The review of reports action was completed on 27 January by requesting the Systems Administrator to 
provide quarterly reports for Heads of Housing to proactively review Agresso permissions.   
 
 
 
 

42.9
%

57.1
%

0.0%

Page 62



Last update: 18/03/2022 16:12                                                                                                                                       Return to Report Sections Summary 

 

7 | P a g e  

 

3.5 Complaints Statistics 

 Table presenting statistics of Level 1 complaints for this service area for the past five 

quarters 

Q3 21-22 Housing Operations – Level 1 Complaints  

KPI Description   
Q3 

20-21 
Q4 

20-21 
Q1 

21-22 
Q2 

21-22 
Q3 

21-22 
Target 

Level 1 
Total number of Level 1 complaints 
received in a quarter  

Number 34 20 16 22 21 
Data 
only 

Level 1 
Number of Level 1 complaints dealt 
with on time in a quarter 

Number 24 17 15 21 19 
Data 
only 

Level 1 

Level 1 Response rate (the 
percentage of complaints 
responded to against the 10 
working days target) 

% 71% 85% 94% 95% 90.48% 95% 

 Table presenting statistics of Level 2 complaints for this service area for the past five 

quarters 

Q3 
20-
21 Housing Ops - Level 2 Complaints       

KPI Description   
Q3 

20-21 
Q4 

20-21 
Q1 

21-22 
Q2 

21-22 
Q3 

21-22 
Target 

Level 
2 

Total number of Level 2 complaints 
received in a quarter  

Number 8 11 8 6 5 
Data 
only 

Level 
2 

Number of Level 2 complaints dealt 
with on time in a quarter 

Number 7 11 8 6 5 
Data 
only 

Level 
2 

Level 2 Response rate (the 
percentage of complaints 
responded to against the 10 
working days target) 

% 88% 100% 100% 100% 100% 95% 

 Summary Comment on the statistics 

It is of note that during 2021/22 where the target has not been met – only one case has made a 

difference due to the low number of cases. 

60% of level one complaint cases have been upheld or partly upheld and the housing service was 

found to be at fault. The majority of complaints related to heating services and jobs not completed.  

However, given the volume of responsive repairs completed, this amounts to the minority proportion of 

cases.  The team review all complaints with contractors and endeavour to ensure identified service 

failures are not repeated. 

 

3.6 Finance Position at the end of the quarter  

 Housing Operations General and Revenue Accounts Tables 

 

General Fund Account      

Services  
Approved Budget  

£'000 
Variance  

£'000 
% Variance  

Adverse/ 
Favourable  

Housing Operations          

Expenditure                34  -               2  -6% Favourable 

Income  -             34                  2  -6% Adverse 

Housing Operations Total                -                  -    - - 

 
 
 
      

Page 63



Last update: 18/03/2022 16:12                                                                                                                                       Return to Report Sections Summary 

 

8 | P a g e  

 

Housing Revenue Account      

Services  
Approved Budget  

£'000 
Variance  

£'000 
% Variance  

Adverse/ 
Favourable  

Housing Operations  

Expenditure          26,181              281  1% Adverse 

Income  -       34,170  -           339  1% Favourable  

Housing Operations Total  -        7,989  -             58  1% Favourable  

 Summary Comment 

The general fund budget relates to the Afghan Refugee Project.  The expenditure is met by central 

government grant funding to balance the budget. 

Income and expenditure balanced within HRA business plan. 

 

Service Dashboard – Housing Delivery and Communities (remit of Services 

O&S) 

This service area includes the following teams: Housing Development, Housing Options, Private 

Sector Housing, Service Improvement and Communities. 

3.7 Key Successes & Lessons Learnt, Areas of Concerns  

 Q3 2021/22 Summary from Head of Service 

Housing Delivery 

The Housing Development Team continues to make steady progress in delivering the new build 

programme. 

Following concerns raised by some tenants about poor drainage in their rear gardens at Site A, 

Ockford Ridge, consultants have investigated, and remediation works are being undertaken by the 

contractor.  

Thakeham Homes are progressing Site B, Ockford Ridge, with early handover of some homes forecast 

and a final completion envisaged for April 2022. Demolition has been completed at Site C. The 

tendering process for the build contract is nearing completion. 

An Employers Agent has been appointed for Site E. The site is particularly challenging, and a build 

contractor will be appointed to develop and deliver the scheme.  

Officers continue to work up proposals for Site F – there is one tenant left to move, and work has 

commenced on the next refurbishment phase – seven homes. 

Tendering for a build contractor is nearing completion for the five sites in Chiddingfold: Hartsgrove, 

Pathfields (x2), Queens Mead and Turners Mead, with start on site expected later in 2022. 

Parkhurst Fields, Churt, has been granted planning permission. There are still planning issues to 

resolve with the Churt Crossway Close scheme.  

Final issues with the footpath at the site at Aarons Hill, Godalming, have been resolved. A build 

contractor will now be appointed. Documents in the draft tender pack have been reviewed to ensure 

the new homes delivered will be carbon neutral/net zero in operation.  

All surveys and reports are being prepared to inform designs and preparation for a planning application 

for Springfield, Elstead. Officers continue to engage with Elstead Parish Council and Surrey County 

Council as well as supporting tenants affected by the proposed redevelopment scheme. 

Page 64



Last update: 18/03/2022 16:12                                                                                                                                       Return to Report Sections Summary 

 

9 | P a g e  

 

The new modular homes at Badgers Close, Farncombe, were manufactured in a factory and delivered 

to site by the Council’s contractor, Beattie Passive. They were handed over on 22 October 2021, 

immediately occupied and the tenants are being supported by the Council’s Rough Sleeper Support 

Officer. 

The Council will shortly acquire four new properties at The Green, Ewhurst, built by Brookworth 

Homes. There are other sites in progress. 

The Service Improvement Team arranged the NHS Making Every Contact Count (MECC)Training for 

the wider housing service.  The training supports anyone who wants to make better life choices to 

improve their health and wellbeing. MECC focuses on the lifestyle issues that, when addressed, can 

make the greatest improvement to an individual’s health.  As well as signposting and encouraging 

residents to improve their health, the team members have successfully quit smoking, reduced alcohol 

intake and become more active. 

Quarter Three was also a reflective and planning time for the Service Improvement Team as 

preparatory work for the Service Plan and Housing Revenue Account budgets was completed.  This 

involved reviewing tenants’ feedback and local and national issues to inform the development of 

budgets and plans. 

Working with Democratic Services, the Leader and Portfolio Holder for Housing the Housing Service 

Improvement Team developed the Landlord Services Advisory Board.  The Board was formed under 

the Executive Working Group protocol to promote tenant and leaseholder engagement in decisions 

relating to the Council’s housing stock and to provide assurance that regulatory requirements are met.  

The first meeting was held in December with board members gaining awareness of fundamental 

landlord functions, discussing performance and the Housing Revenue Account Budget. 

Andrew Smith, Head of Housing Delivery and Communities 

3.8 Key Performance Indicators Status  

 Table of Service Specific Performance Indicators presenting data for the five past 

quarters and their performance against the target 

KPI Description 
Data 
Type 

Q3 
20-21 

Q4 
20-21 

Q1 
21-22 

Q2  
21-22 

Q3  
21-22 

 Target 

HD2 

Number of Affordable 
homes - Granted planning 
permission (Data only - 
higher outturn is better) 

No. 8 4 105 4 0 Data only 

HD4b 

Number of affordable 
homes delivered by the 
Council (gross) (Data only 
- higher outturn is better) 

No.   3 0 2 Data only 

 Comment:  

Good progress has been made across all homelessness and delivery services. 

 

 Affordable Homes Delivery 

The details on all affordable homes delivered during Q3 2021-22 (ref. HD4) are listed below, including 

information on units, tenure, location and provider 

• 2 Affordable Rented units at Badgers Close, Farncombe (WBC) 

 

Page 65



Last update: 18/03/2022 16:12                                                                                                                                       Return to Report Sections Summary 

 

10 | P a g e  

 

3.9 Finance Position at the end of the quarter  

 Housing Revenue Account Table 

Housing Revenue Account  

Services  
Approved 

Budget  
 £'000 

Variance  
 £'000 

% Variance  
Adverse/ 

Favourable  

Housing Delivery & Communities  

Expenditure  1,385 -20 -1% Favourable 

Income  -752 0 0% -   

Housing Delivery & Communities Total  632 -20 -3% Favourable 

 Summary Comment 

There is now a £20k saving on the expenditure line: this is made up of mainly staffing savings from the 

Service Improvement Team.  

Page 66



 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Annexe Two 

Annual Review of the  
Corporate Key Performance Indicators Set for 2022-23  

 

Final version: 25 February 2022 
 

Landlord Services Advisory Board Extract: 28 February 2022  
 
 

KPI Review Status Assigned Colour 

New KPI Proposed Marked in blue 

Changes Requested Marked in pink 

No Change Proposed Marked in white 

 

1 Introduction  

1.1 Background information 

The Council measures progress and performance against its plans and priorities using a 

range of measures and the ongoing monitoring of key performance indicators (KPIs) is part 

of that process. Over the years, the organisation has adopted, and reported on, a set of key 

performance indicators. The aim of these KPIs is to indicate how successful we are in the 

delivery of our services against set targets, which is an essential part of performance 

management and the scrutiny process. The indicators are included in the corporate 

performance report reviewed quarterly by the Senior Management Team, Executive and 

O&S Committees. Data on all corporate indicators is stored in a corporate performance 

monitoring application called Pentana. 

 

1.2 Annual review  

Once a year the organisation engages in a review of KPIs in order to ensure that they are 

still fit for purpose. This exercise takes place in January and February with proposals 

travelling to O&S Committees in March, followed by the formal approval by the Executive at 

the end of March / early April. 

The collection of any new indicators begins at the start of every new financial year, on the 1 

April. In-year amendments to indicators are discouraged for consistency reasons and any 

changes should be carried out as part of the annual review, unless governmental or 

legislative directives require a mid-year adjustment.  

 

1.3 Targets & Data only KPIs 

Our key drivers for setting up performance indicators with specific targets are: 

• Governmental requirements – targets are imposed on the local authority (in the 

performance report indicated as (NI) = National Indicator), some services, more than 

others, are bound by these returns. 

• Contractual obligations – targets are agreed with our suppliers as part of the service 

contract and remain for the duration of that contract. 

Page 67



 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

• Organisational need to drive performance –certain targets are agreed in order to drive 

performance to a desired level. 

We also include some indicators without targets, labelled as ‘Data only’ which indicate 

volume of work and allow us to spot pattens and trends. Quite often the KPIs will show a 

specific number, such as the number of fly tipping incidents or complaints received, which 

may not be within the council’s control therefore setting a performance target is not 

practical. These type of indicators are often paired with another target driven indicator which 

concentrates on how effectively we dealt with an issue. For example, have we removed the 

fly tips in a timely manner or responded to the complaint within the set target? Data only 

indicators are also used when a new indicator is introduced, and the performance trend 

needs to be analysed first in order to establish the correct baseline for future target setting.   

 

1.4 New Indicators 

When the officers consider the introduction of a new performance indicator they first try to: 

• establish if we have access to a reliable data source required to produce regular 

statistics e.g. on a quarterly basis, and also to ascertain if there are resources 

available to carry out this task in the future 

• find out if other authorities or agencies collect similar data (useful as a starting point 

and for future benchmarking)  

• specify a clear definition, formula guidance/measurement method and format (e.g., 

number, %) 

• decide if the aim is to minimise or maximise the output (higher value or lower value is 

considered better) 

• decide if this indicator will be driven by a specific target or set up as ‘data only’   

 

1.5 Sections summary & 2022/23 proposals  

The current set of key corporate performance indicators has been reviewed by each service 
with the new 2022/23 proposals. The proposals have been reviewed by the Senior 
Management Team. The Landlord Service Advisory Board and Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees are asked to scrutinise the following proposals and pass on their comments to 
the Executive and officers.  
 

 

2 Housing Operations KPIs 

2.1 Proposal for 2022/23  

KPI Description 
Data 
Type 

Target 
Responsible 
Team 

Proposed 
Changes 

HO1 

Total current tenants rent 
arrears as a percentage of the 
total estimated gross debit 
(lower outturn is better) 

% 1%   
Rents Account 
Team 

No Change 

HO2 

Average number of working 
days taken to re-let 'normal 
void' property (lower outturn 
is better) 

Days 20 
Repairs and 
Voids Team 

No Change 

Page 68



 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

KPI Description 
Data 
Type 

Target 
Responsible 
Team 

Proposed 
Changes 

HO3 

Percentage of annual boiler 
services and gas safety 
checks undertaken on time 
(higher outturn is better) 

% 100% 
Compliance 
Team 

No Change 

HO4 

Responsive Repairs: How 
would you rate the overall 
service you have received? 
(Tenants' view of the service) 
(higher outturn is better) 

% 93% 
Repairs and 
Voids Team 

Change of the 
target to 90% 

HO4b 

Responsive Repairs:  
Average number of days to  
complete a repair (lower  
outturn is better) * 

Days 7 
Repairs and 
Voids Team 

Temporary 
contract measure 
– will be 
discontinued from 
31/03/2022 

HO5 

Responsive Repairs: Was 
repair completed right first 
time? (Tenants' view of the 
service) (higher outturn is 
better) 

% 78% 
Repairs and 
Voids Team 

No Change 

HO5b 

Responsive Repairs:  
Percentage of jobs not  
completed within 28 days  
(lower outturn is better) * 

% 10% 
Repairs and 
Voids Team 

Temporary 
contract measure 
– will be 
discontinued from 
31/03/2022 

HO6 
% of tenancy audits 
completed against scheduled 
appointments in a quarter. 

% 97% 
Housing 
Management 

Change of the 
target to 95% 

 

2.2 Comment 

The justification for target changes have been listed below: 

• HO1 retained at the same level to reflect challenges of rent collection following 
pandemic, increase in number of UC applicants and pressures as cost of living rises. 

• HO2 retained pre pandemic target for new contract to commence April 2022 

• HO3 retained legislative target 

• HO4 a new responsive repairs contractor and tenant feedback market researcher is 
commencing April 2022.  90% target based on average 2019/20 performance 

• HO4b and HO5b – temporary measures introduced for interim contactor and no 
longer needed from April 2022 as a new contract begins with a return to HO4 and 
HO5. 

• HO5 a new responsive repairs contractor and tenant feedback market researcher is 
commencing April 2022 - retain pre pandemic target 

• HO6 target has not been met due to challenges on reporting. It is proposed that a 
slightly lower target is used which is still challenging but more achievable 

 

3 Housing Delivery and Communities  

3.1 Proposal for 2022/23  

KPI Description 
Data 
Type 

 
Target 

Responsible 
Team 

Proposed 
Changes 

HD2 
Number of Affordable homes - 
Granted planning permission 

No. 
Data 
only 

Housing 
Enabling Team 

No Change 

Page 69



 
 

4 | P a g e  
 

KPI Description 
Data 
Type 

 
Target 

Responsible 
Team 

Proposed 
Changes 

(Data only - higher outturn is 
better) 

HD3 

Number of Affordable homes - 
Started on site within a quarter 
(Data only - higher outturn is 
better) 

No. 
Data 
only 

Housing 
Enabling Team 

No Change 

HD4b 

Number of affordable homes 
delivered by the Council 
(gross) (Data only - higher 
outturn is better) 

No. 
Data 
only 

Housing 
Enabling Team 

No Change 

3.2 Comment 

There are no changes proposed to the current indicator set for 2022/23. 
 

4 Lead Officer contact details  

Name:   Nora Copping 
Position:   Policy & Performance Officer 
Telephone:  01483 523 465 
Email:   nora.copping@waverley.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 70



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

LSAB Work Programme 

Work programme to be developed inc budget planning and monitoring, H&S compliance, contractor overview, service plan, reshape 

services to reflect recent and future challenges and more in depth performance reporting in line with regulations.   

Month Report Reason LSAB action Decision by  Decision 
date 

November 
2021 

Board induction pack: 
 
Board Guidelines 
• Board terms of reference  

• Code of Conduct Councillors 
• Code of Conduct Tenant Panel 

 
Service and Financial Plans 
• Housing Operations Service 

Plan 

• Housing Delivery and 
Communities Service Plan 
(Ref 7.5-7.9)  

• Housing Revenue Account 
Budget 2021/22 Committee 
Report and budget annexes  

 
Internal and External 
Publications 
• Tenants Newsletter - 

Summer 2021 and Winter 
2020 

• Housing Glossary 

• The charter for social 
housing residents: social 
housing white paper 

• Attitudes to Council Housing 
pride or Prejudice 

 

Board members review 
information to raise 
awareness and identify 
areas for further mentoring, 
resources and/or training. 

Board decision on 
additional 
requirements.  
Feedback to Service 
Improvement Manager 

Board Ongoing 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 9

https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Portals/0/Documents/services/council-information/councillors-and-meetings/Local%20Government%20Association%20Model%20Councillor%20Code%20of%20Conduct%202020%20WEB.pdf?ver=x45n3QdE2KnSjIpNFRzn5w%3d%3d
https://modgov.waverley.gov.uk/documents/s40018/Service%20Plan%20-%20Housing%20Operations.pdf
https://modgov.waverley.gov.uk/documents/s40018/Service%20Plan%20-%20Housing%20Operations.pdf
https://modgov.waverley.gov.uk/documents/s40017/Service%20Plan%20-%20Housing%20Delivery%20and%20Communities.pdf
https://modgov.waverley.gov.uk/documents/s40017/Service%20Plan%20-%20Housing%20Delivery%20and%20Communities.pdf
https://modgov.waverley.gov.uk/documents/s39232/HRA%20Business%20Plan%20Budget%20Paper%2021_22.pdf
https://modgov.waverley.gov.uk/documents/s39232/HRA%20Business%20Plan%20Budget%20Paper%2021_22.pdf
https://modgov.waverley.gov.uk/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=23052&PlanId=0&Opt=3#AI26665
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Portals/0/Documents/services/housing/council-housing/Waverley%20Homes%20and%20People%20Magazine%20Summer%202021.pdf?ver=ZCZgq2z0Nn2jPG1sgjFHyw%3d%3d
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Portals/0/Documents/services/housing/council-housing/Waverley%20Homes%20and%20People%20Magazine%20Winter%202020.pdf?ver=LNCyISFqU0zC7l1DdZiamw%3d%3d
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Portals/0/Documents/services/housing/council-housing/Waverley%20Homes%20and%20People%20Magazine%20Winter%202020.pdf?ver=LNCyISFqU0zC7l1DdZiamw%3d%3d
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-charter-for-social-housing-residents-social-housing-white-paper
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-charter-for-social-housing-residents-social-housing-white-paper
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-charter-for-social-housing-residents-social-housing-white-paper
https://modgov.waverley.gov.uk/documents/s28665/Item%207%20-%20Final%20report%20Council%20Housing%20Pride%20or%20Prejudice.pdf
https://modgov.waverley.gov.uk/documents/s28665/Item%207%20-%20Final%20report%20Council%20Housing%20Pride%20or%20Prejudice.pdf


 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

Meeting 
date  

Report Reason LSAB action Decision by  Decision 
date 

2 December 2021 
 

 Introduction to the Housing 
Revenue Account  
 

To gain familiarity with HRA 
and discuss challenges 
 

Feedback comments 
to Head of Housing 
Operations and Head 
of Finance 

Board At meeting 

 HRA Budget Progress and 
Forecast Report (April to 
October 2021)  
 

To gain awareness with 
budget, income, expenditure 
and discuss priority 
spending 
 

Feedback comments 
to Head of Housing 
Operations and Head 
of Finance 

Board At meeting 

 Q2 Performance report 
(extract from Corporate 
Report) 

Board members to gain 
understanding and 
awareness of current 
reporting system  
 

Identify any areas wish 
to comment on, 
explore or examine 
further.  Feedback 
comments to Head of 
Housing Operations 

Board Ongoing 

 Draft LSAB work plan Board members to consider 
work plan  
 
 

Suggest amendments 
or additions to 
programme 
 

Board Ongoing 

  

P
age 72



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

Meeting 
date  

Report Reason LSAB action Decision 
by  

Decision 
date 

10 January 2022 
 

 Affordable Homes Delivery 
Strategy  

Consultation exercise Agree Board response to 
consultation  
 

Council April 2022 

 Outcome – Cllr Keen and Terry Daubney to meet with Alice Lean and Esther Lyons, Housing Strategy and Enabling 
Managers, to review consultation documentation and feedback on behalf of the Board. 
Consultation on Strategy 27 January to 24 February 2022 all to promote. 
  

 Project closure report 
Responsive Repairs and 
Voids procurement 
exercise 

Review and comment 
on project and 
mobilisation 

Identify any areas wish to 
comment on, explore or 
examine further.  Feedback 
comments to Operations 
Manager 

Board At meeting 

 Outcome – Board to review contract KPIs and receive presentations from Ian Williams and The Leadership 
Foundation at future meetings. 
 

 Regulator of Social 
Housing consultation – 
Tenant Satisfaction 
Measures 
 

Consultation exercise Agree Board response to 
consultation 

Board 28 February 
2022 

 Outcome – Board members to share any other comments on consultation with Annalisa Howson. Housing Service 
Improvement Manager, by 14 February 2022. 
 

  

P
age 73



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

Meeting 
date  

Report Reason LSAB action Decision 
by  

Decision 
date 

28 January 2022 
 

 Housing Operations 
Service Plan 2022/23 and 
Housing Development 
objectives from Housing 
Delivery and Communities 
Service Plan 
 

Review and comment 
on draft Service Plan 
 

Feedback comments to 
Portfolio Holder for Housing 

Council Feb 2022 

 Outcome – Board members supported service plan themes and actions.   
To receive progress updates on service plan in the quarterly performance reports and an in depth six month review 
in October 2022 
 

 HRA Budget 2022/23 Review draft budget and 
agree financial plans 
 

Feedback comments to 
Portfolio Holder for Housing 

Council Feb 2022 

 Outcome – Board members supported HRA budget.   
Tenants Panel to work with housing service on hardship fund.   
Board to receive report on Hardship Fund July 2022 
Officers to promote no charge to tenants for use of communal rooms.   
Budget report recommendations to be updated to reflect commercial or non-commercial use. 
 

 
 
 

Verbal Progress update on 
Asset Management 
Strategy included in Budget 
and Service Plan reports. 
 

Review and comment 
on draft strategy 
 

Feedback comments to 
Asset Manager 

Board At meeting 

 Outcome – AMS to be presented to Board March 2022 
 

  

P
age 74



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

 

Meeting 
date  

Report TBC Reason LSAB action Decision 
by  

Decision 
date 

24 February 2022 
 

 Intro to Senior Living and 
consultation results  
LSAB req additional info re: 
impact of COVID-19 and 
lockdown 
Intro to Senior Living 
 

To gain awareness of 
Senior living provision.  
Review findings and 
proposed actions from 
Senior Living consultation 

To comment on findings and 
action plan to Senior Living 
Manager 
 

Board At meeting 

 Outcome – Board questioned methodology and if service meeting published commitments.  Recognised draft action 
plan but requested further in depth review to ensure service fit for the future.  Head of Housing Operations to scope 
project.  Senior Living Service to be standing item on LSAB agenda. 
 

 Q3 HRA Budget 
Monitoring Report 

To gain awareness of 
budget, income, 
expenditure and 
challenges. 
 

Feedback comments to 
Head of Housing Operations 
and Head of Finance 

Board At meeting 

 Outcome – report postponed.  Financial information to be included in Q3 Performance report due March meeting. 
 

 Use of Flexible 
Tenancies Review 

Analyse findings from 
review and proposed 
changes to tenancy terms 

To comment on findings.  
Feedback comments to 
Service Improvement 
Manager 
 

Portfolio 
Holder 

April 

 Outcome  - Board unanimously agreed to advise the Portfolio Holder to commence implementation plan and 
consultation to end the use of flexible tenancies and review conditions of tenancy.  Project plan and tenancy 
conditions, policy and strategy to be presented to Board Spring/Summer dates tbc. 

  

P
age 75



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

 

Meeting 
date  

Report  Reason LSAB action Decision 
by  

Decision 
date 

31 March 2022 
 

 Introduction to TLF (The 
Leadership Foundation) 
responsive repairs 
feedback contractor 

Meet contractor and raise 
awareness of survey 
methodology and 
performance reports 

Identify any areas wish to 
comment on, explore or 
examine further and agree 
reporting cycle.  Feedback 
comments to Operations 
Manager 

Board At meeting 

 Asset Management 
Strategy 

To review draft strategy 
key themes and 
commitments 
 
 

Feedback comments to 
Portfolio Holder for Housing 
and recommend LSAB 
ongoing monitoring and 
Council adoption 

Council April 

 
 

Q3 Performance report  Review and consider 
current performance and 
consider 2022/23 KPIs 

Identify any areas wish to 
comment on, explore or 
examine further.  Feedback 
comments to Head of 
Housing Operations 

Board Ongoing 

 Senior Living Service To provide verbal progress 
report on actions following 
consultation 

To comment service review 
and action plan to Senior 
Living Manager 
 

Board Ongoing 

 Tenancy Review Project  To provide verbal progress 
report on project 

To comment on project and 
advice on tenant 
consultation.  Feedback 
comments to Service 
Improvement Manager 

Board 
 
 

Ongoing 
 

 

  

P
age 76



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

Note The following agenda items to be reviewed and meeting dates agreed with project managers.  Those in bold agreed.  To hold 

monthly meetings with three agenda items only. 

Meeting 
date  

Report TBC Reason LSAB action Decision by  Decision 
date 

28 April 2022 

 Introduction to 
Responsive Repairs and 
Voids contractor 
 

Meet contractor, review 
service promises, and 
contract management 
 

Identify any areas wish to 
comment on, explore or 
examine further and agree 
reporting cycle.  Feedback 
comments to Operations 
Manager 
 

Board At meeting 

 LSAB req report Garages 
–long-term strategy  
discussion 

To raise awareness of the 
number of garage sites, 
and income/ expenditure 
commitments and to 
consider mitigation and 
development opportunities 
to inform garage 
management strategy 

Feedback comments to 
Strategic Asset Manager 

Board At meeting 

 Tenancy Review Project 
inc assessment against 
Regulatory Tenancy 
Standard 

To provide written progress 
report on project and 
regulatory context 
 

Feedback comments to 
Service Improvement 
Manager 

Board Ongoing 

 Senior Living Service To provide (verbal or 
written) progress report on 
actions following 
consultation 

To comment service 
review and action plan to 
Senior Living Manager 
 

Board Ongoing 

 
 

     

 

P
age 77



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

Meeting 
date  

Report TBC Reason LSAB action Decision by  Decision 
date 

26 May 2022 
 

 Tenancy Review project 
 

To provide (verbal or 
written) progress report on 
project 
 

Feedback comments to 
Service Improvement 
Manager 

Board Ongoing 

 Property Services 
Procurement Strategy and 
action plan 

Agile framework    

 Senior Living Service To provide (verbal or 
written) progress report on 
actions following 
consultation 

To comment service review 
and action plan to Senior 
Living Manager 
 

Board Ongoing 

 Intro to Rent Accounts 
Team  

Meet the team, awareness 
of actions, policy, 
challenges and successes 
of team to meet and 
exceed rent collection 
target 

Identify any areas wish to 
comment on, explore or 
examine further and agree 
reporting cycle.  Feedback 
comments to Rent Accounts 
Manager 

Board At meeting 

  

P
age 78



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

Meeting 
date  

Report TBC Reason LSAB action Decision by  Decision 
date 

30 June 2022 
 

 

 Tenancy Agreement 
consultation findings  

To review findings from 
tenancy agreement 
consultation  
 

Advice HofH and PH to 
serve statutory notice to 
amend tenancy conditions 

Hof H in 
consultation 
with 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Housing 

June 

 Tenancy Policy  Review and comment on 
draft document  

Advice HofH and PH to 
adopted updated Tenancy 
Policy and stop use of 
flexible tenancies  

Hof H in 
consultation 
with 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Housing 

June 

 Tenancy Strategy  
 

Review and comment on 
draft document 

Advice HofH and PH to 
request Exec recommend 
adoption of Tenancy 
Strategy and stop use of 
flexible tenancies  

Council July 

 Tenant Involvement 
Progress Report  

Review and consider 
current performance and 
proposed actions in line 
with regulatory Tenant 
Involvement and 
Empowerment Consumer 
Standard 

To comment on report and 
recommend methodology 
for future recruitment and 
selection of resident board 
members.  Feedback 
comments to Service 
Improvement Manager 
 

Board At meeting 

 Q4 Performance report 
inc 2021/22 Service Plan 
achievements 

Review and consider 
current performance 

Identify any areas wish to 
comment on, explore or 
examine further.  Feedback 

Board Ongoing 

P
age 79



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

comments to Head of 
Housing Operations 
 

 Health and Safety 
performance report – intro 
to Compliance Team 

Review and consider 
current performance and 
proposed actions in line 
with regulatory Home 
Consumer Standard 
 

Identify any areas wish to 
comment on, explore or 
examine further and agree 
reporting cycle.  Feedback 
comments to Compliance 
Manager 
 

Board At meeting 

 Senior Living Service To provide (verbal or 
written) progress report on 
actions following 
consultation 

To comment service review 
and action plan to Senior 
Living Manager 
 

Board Ongoing 

 

  P
age 80



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

 

Meeting 
date  

Report TBC Reason LSAB action Decision by  Decision 
date 

28 July 2022 
 

 Housing Management 
Progress Report  

Review and consider 
current performance and 
proposed actions in line 
with regulatory Tenancy 
and Neighbourhood and 
Community Consumer 
Standards 
 

Identify any areas wish to 
comment on, explore or 
examine further and agree 
reporting cycle.  Feedback 
comments to Housing 
Manager 

Board At meeting 

 Q1 Performance report Review and consider 
current performance 

Identify any areas wish to 
comment on, explore or 
examine further.  
Feedback comments to 
Head of Housing 
Operations 
 

Board Ongoing 

 Review of Hardship Fund 
 

Review objectives, take 
up, costs and outcomes of 
scheme 
 

Identify any areas wish to 
comment on, explore or 
examine further and agree 
reporting cycle.  Feedback 
comments to Rent 
Accounts Manager 

Board At meeting 

 Senior Living Service To provide (verbal or 
written) progress report on 
actions following 
consultation 

To comment service 
review and action plan to 
Senior Living Manager 
 

Board Ongoing 

 

  

P
age 81



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

 

 

Meeting 
date  

Report TBC Reason LSAB action Decision by  Decision 
date 

29 September 2022 
 

 Rent Accounts Progress 
Report 

Review and consider 
current performance and 
proposed actions in line 
with regulatory Rent 
Standard 
 

Identify any areas wish to 
comment on, explore or 
examine further and agree 
reporting cycle.  Feedback 
comments to Rent 
Accounts Manager 
 

Board At meeting 

 Reshaping of staffing 
resources  

Review proposal to add 
capacity and resilience, to 
ensure professional 
service delivery, 
succession planning and 
health and wellbeing of 
team   
 

Feedback comments to 
Service Improvement 
Manager 
 

Hof H in 
consultation 
with 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Housing 

October 

 
 

Senior Living Service To provide (verbal or 
written) progress report on 
actions following 
consultation 

To comment service 
review and action plan to 
Senior Living Manager 
 

Board Ongoing 

 IT review of databases and 
digital services 
 

Review and consider 
current performance and 
proposed actions 

Feedback comments to 
Service Improvement 
Manager 
 

Board at meeting 

 

  

P
age 82



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

 

Meeting 
date  

Report TBC Reason LSAB action Decision by  Decision 
date 

27 October 2022 
 

 Six month Service Plan 
progress report and 
Development of 2023/24 
Service Plan 
 

Review and comment on 
draft Service Plan 
 

Feedback comments to 
Portfolio Holder for 
Housing 

Board 
review 
Council 
adopt new 
SP 

Feb 2023 

      

  
 

    

 

Meeting 
date  

Report Reason LSAB action Decision by  Decision 
date 

24 November 2022 
 

 Q2 Performance report 
and midyear 
performance review 
 

Review and consider 
current performance and 
need of Board to govern 
effectively. 

Identify and agree areas 
for Board monitoring.  
Feedback comments to 
Head of Housing 
Operations 

Board At meeting 

 2023/24 HRA Budget 
 

Review draft budget and 
agree financial plans 
 

Feedback comments to 
Portfolio Holder for 
Housing 

Council Feb 2023 

      

 

  

P
age 83



 

AH 18 March 2022 
 

Internal notes 

Potential briefings: 

▪ Intro to Asset Management - to inc AMS report 

▪ Intro to Housing Development - to inc in Q performance reports 

▪ Intro to Housing Management – to inc July report 

▪ Intro to Property Services – to inc March and April report 

▪ Intro to Compliance – to inc May report 

▪ Intro to Rent Accounts Team - to inc April report 

▪ Intro to Senior Living - to inc Feb report 

▪ Intro to Tenant Involvement - to inc June report 

▪ Intro to Housing Regulator Standards – to inc reference in 

applicable reports and follow up with Regulator briefings 

 

Proposed Cycle of reports 

Budget reports - each meeting 

Complaints report – every quarter include or expand upon in Quarterly performance reports 

KPIs inc customer satisfaction - every quarter include or expand upon in Quarterly performance reports 

Service Plan progress -- every quarter include or expand upon in Quarterly performance reports 

Housing Delivery Board Update – share notes of HDB with LSAB after each meeting 

H&S – every six months with quarterly tenants’ satisfaction reports added to Quarterly performance reports 

Procurement project – as scheduled 

 

To routinely cross check work programme with: 

Service Plan actions, team performance reporting, HDB programme 

Regulatory standards – economic (governance), (VfM), Rent and consumer Home, Tenancy, Neighbourhood and Community, Tenant Involvement 

and Empowerment 

White paper chapters – safety, performance, complaints, respect (consumer reg), voice heard, quality home and neighbourhood, support Home 

Ownership 

To consider speed networking event for Board members to meet managers/team leaders and gain understanding in each service area – rather than 

agenda items where no decision 

P
age 84


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Housing Asset Management Strategy
	Annexe One_ draft Housing Asset Management Strategy v6

	6 Housing Performance Report Quarter 3 with Key Performance Indicator Review
	Annexe One_Q3 CorpPerf Report- LSAB extract
	Annexe Two_Q3 Annual Review of Corporate KPIs Set_LSAB extract

	9 Work programme

